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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ES B EZ12A31BLLEE
Results Year ended 31 December
2016 20154 #E
2016 2015 Change
AR TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue 112,284 68,168 64.7%
ERE (B 18) Operating profit/(loss) 14,283 (96,433) 114.8%
FRiStiE & Income tax credit 12,748 3,040 319.3%
ERFE,(EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 28,608 (88,804)  132.2%
FERARQNTIRLE EIL SR Earnings/(loss) per share attributable
BH(E8) to shareholders of the Company
(B AR¥TTHIR)  for the year (expressed in RMB
per share)
— BEAR#E — Basic and diluted 0.22 0.69)  131.9%
AR5 AK R ®12A318
Financial position As at 31 December
2016 2015%F b))
2016 2015 Change
ARETx ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEE Total assets 636,191 603,741 5.4%
mEEEFE Net current assets 367,320 367,693 -0.1%
REERTEBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 563,076 534,468 5.4%
mat’ Total liabilities 73,115 69,273 5.5%
1B A Total equity 563,076 534,468 5.4%
M BB R ®12A31H
Financial statistics As at 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
B b & Current ratio’ 6.0 6.3
B &t &2 Gearing ratio? - —
FERAERAE(HE) Inventory turnover days (days)® 149.3 339.1
BSREWRIBERAEAE(R) Trade receivables turnover days (days)* 632.1 1,303.1
EoENRIERAEBEE(A)S Trade payables turnover days (days)® 421 59.1
1. MBLERENRDEERADAEE 1. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
2. BELEEEREELTERARER  BERNU 2. Gearing ratio = total borrowings/total equity x 100%
100%
3. GFERAEREESERTFELERBREANRA - BF 3. Inventory turnover days = inventory balance/revenue for the year x 365 days
143658
4, BSREWFERAEREEENEZRURBLEH 4, Trade receivables turnover days = trade receivables balance/revenue for the
BERW A - BEA365H year x 365 days
5. BRENFERASASEENES BN RBLEH 5. Trade payables turnover days = trade payables balance/revenue for the year x
BFE R A - BEA365H 365 days

5 N ERFH KR M AR 2D E WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

AABREXEF(EFN)2(ESFE)RE
EEHRNERNEBRHERAA(EL
BAOREMNBARGEIFEREIKED
EBDHZE2016F12A31H IEFE(ER])
CIRBRITEEE -

20165 - PR EAHGBNERET
BRKE REERFNBAARE - 7H
MERPE THCB T REER 2B BBEH
188  N2016FRERFA - YhBE2F - ™
BERRITEMTAREES T AEER

X EEE

B2010F E =B A% - BARM AR b %
FIEAAR - HE2016%F @ PEKELEKE
CHBNMBREEENE REERARSY:
FEETBER  HEMREVERR -
BRI RSEAARE ABEITEMAES
BlkENE EHEZZAKEED 2
FESH28008W - XmNTEWKE
K EHMELAINE  THHBME
BEREF_FEMBES  ERTEN
BR SAEBEHEERLY EFRKLTE
LD RA647%  EREOELE EFFFR
HA 8 R #980.6% * FIWEF £ F480.8%
Z= AR #32,900,0007T * AEBE2016F[F
7 F)E 815 A R #28,600,0007T °

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)’), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of &5 NERHEKRMHBRAR Wuxi Sunlit
Science and Technology Company Limited* (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “Sunlit”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”).

In the year of 2016, China’s economy grew steadily under the
guidance of supply-side reform, and the atmosphere of
manufacturing industry also improved. After a long period of
downturn, China’s tire industry has recovered gradually and
bottomed out in 2016. Looking through the whole year, market
situation and favorable industrial factors enabled the Company
to recover from loss and turn to a profit.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Domestic tire companies have started to adjust their business
since the peak in 2010. As of 2016, China’s economic base was
consolidated by stable consumption and investment and strong
domestic demand. Steady growth were seen in different
industries, making the preliminary results of supply-side reform
and economic recovery characteristics prominent. As automobile
industry strengthened the implementation of supply-side reform,
production and sales of automobiles showed a monthly growth
trend, with annual output quantity of over 28 million. Benefited
from the recovery of tire demand and supply-side reform, radial
tire steel cord demand started to recover in the second quarter
of the Year. With the increase in order quantity, the Company’s
sales increased by approximately 64.7% year-on-year (“YoY”),
export volume increased by approximately 80.6% YoY and gross
profit increased by approximately 80.8% to RMB32.9 million. In
2016, the Company recorded a net profit of RMB28.6 million.

ZZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016

5



T FEIREZE CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

2 IEEEEe
BEeEZREHE2016F12831HIEF
B2 R B ER AR¥0.057T °

20165 » REBHEER  HAEENE
EBERFEENEKE  BERRAR
RERT  #BTERENUBMRR - B
AEBRFBENAHEWREFNEENR
S & WEHP D REESEKRFIES
FEUBR SRR E B EE L -

20165F11 H30R  "EE & QAR EHE N
EREBRMDBERARIEFEETHE R
BREWE  IHaVBE  BIRMBE -
MABBERBREN SRR =G0
TEZFBE JUEEZEI% I EBEMS
B -

EpER

20174 - [ 4 RISk D R A R B K
ROEH  NERSSEF R - HFDOE
PEBREKAERLE  ERBFERRE
MAKEZEREEERRE - At - £E&
feRmimEaMERRRAERZREN
EHEET BRGBESHEEANES
REBBBNAR  BRUABER/E - ERT
B ANERE MG EERRER
Exef B REMRDISEEBRE -

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of RMB0.05 per
share for the Year.

In 2016, as the Group did not make any borrowings, its asset-
liability ratio continued to be low and cash flow remained in a
good condition, maintaining a stable financial condition. At the
same time, the Group continued to strengthen the management
and risk prevention of accounts receivable, and reversed some
of the impairment provision for receivables by recovering some
of the impairment of trade receivables.

On 30 November 2016, the Group’s parent company £ §5 2% 77
ERERMHABER AT Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology
Company Limited* successfully obtained a three-year high
technology enterprise certificate jointly issued by Jiangsu
Science and Technology Department, Department of Finance of
Jiangsu Province, State Administration of Taxation and Local
Taxation Bureau, and was allowed to continue to enjoy a 15%
preferential income tax rate.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2017, “supply side reform” will continue to be the focus of
national economic policy of China and reforms will gradually be
deepened. Among the reforms, the first priority will go to
revitalizing the real economy and eliminating overcapacity while
improving product quality. Therefore, the Group will enhance its
products’ competitiveness by means of technological and quality
innovation. Under the new normal, the government encouraged
the transformation and upgrading of traditional manufacturing to
intelligent manufacturing, and emphasized quality improvement.
As the largest manufacturer of electroplated brass wire
production line in China, the Board of Directors remains
optimistic on the long-term prospect of the Group.

6 FEHRNENERH BB AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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PROSPECTS

China’s domestic economy will continue to enter the new
normal, the Board believes that China’s economic growth may
further be slowed down and China’s economy will operate
within a reasonable range. Looking forward to 2017, it is
expected that China’s economy will maintain a steady growth,
and steel cord market will be seeking changes whilst
maintaining overall stability. For domestic market, passenger
cars and commercial vehicles added over the past 5 years will
soon face the tire-replacing cycle, which implies a growth in tire
demand. As challenges and opportunities coexist, steel cord
market is still full of opportunities in the medium and long run:
The government’s continuous introduction of stimulus policies
regarding the new-energy industry will promote a new
installation trend in downstream photovoltaic industry, and
promote the volume expansion of silicon-chip cord-cutting
market. At the same time, due to the consistent strong demand
for passenger cars and commercial vehicles, both production
and selling of automobiles are thriving, maintaining sustainable
growth potential in the radial tire steel cord industry. In addition,
“One Belt, One Road” and supply-side reform will vitalize the
real economy, which is favorable for the Group to further
increase market share and expand overseas markets.

In view of this, the Group is taking the strategic guidance
approach, will strengthen technological development, train
technological management personnel and technological
innovation personnel, carry out quality improvement actions,
strengthen quality control and create high standard products, so
as to open up new overseas markets, maintain and expand the
existing market share, maintain the Group’s sustainable growth
and expand profitability. As a leader in the industry, Sunlit
believes that the Group will receive more support from overseas
clients, allowing the Group to not only maintain a leading
position in domestic market, but also move forward to realise
the goals of becoming a global leading producer of steel cord
products and equipment and achieving better performance. The
Group is committed to achieving the above-mentioned goals,
and creating higher values for investors and shareholders
through untiring efforts!
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
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Zhang Degang
Chairman of the Board
Jiangsu, China
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

¥ OEE

20164F » FEA R EAME ([hE ) & 5%
PR KBEEBEL FTEAREE
KERENRENRZHBARS 1IN
BRNBERBTRENTRKEMER
HHHRERERTISTEERHOE

BEPETETEHREER - 2016FFEH
FMEEHRREE  EHLEBAEL
= o 20165F R B E IHF L 18 K 4914.5%
M13.7% © & R2015%F [F 8 £911.2% &
0.0% - EEBBRERNELHBBEREER
ERZT mHEETTHREESRNT X
FMigE & AEBEERTTHIBMER
REHHER  EMBRBAGSHT
AEBREGELCARLCERR R
S EMES - FARAEENKEERTE
FHEE  ERRITHER -

FR - AEBEEEER0ISFREM
1B R2016%F ' AEEHBRABHOAR
#112,300,0007T + 2 FFREAMEL EAT
#H64.7% - BREMIEMIEN - EFEF
MM EEREHEESTHR SN -
REEMEFMERLLERTH2.6%KEF)
I E 4 A R#32,900,0007T (20154 © 49
AR %18,200,0007T) ° 4N - AEBFE
BHTWE TS RERERFIESE
WRERBEREBEER FENARK
14,900,0007C ' AEEBERKEERME R
& - 8135 R E 4 A R#28,600,0007T ©
LRME AR LEMEER  AQREHEBA
AR 3R FE A5 8 F 49 A R #28,600,0007T -
f2015F B RIS AN Bl AR R B (L B 18 F 58
#) A\ R #88,800,0007T °

AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, the economy in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC” or “China”) grew steadily. Economic structure was
optimized and development mode was transformed, resulting in
the increase in both quality and efficiency of economic growth.
In addition, as the demand for automobiles increased as a
result of the government’s stimulus policies, the tire market and
aftermarket recovered steadily.

According to the data from China Association of Automobile
Manufactures, China’s automobile manufacturing and selling
experienced relatively rapid increases in 2016, causing the total
volume of manufacturing and selling to reach a record high. In
2016, automobile production and selling increased by
approximately 14.5% YoY and 13.7% YoY respectively, being
approximately 11.2% and 9.0% higher than the same period of
2015. Under the dual effect of improved macro-environment and
increased tire demand, market demand for radial tire steel cord
started to recover. As a radial tire steel cord equipment supplier
under a favorable market environment, the Group has optimized
and adjusted its management concepts and strengthened risk
prevention and control, resulting in steady and good progress of
the Group’s business development.

During the Year, the Group’s overall performance was more
in 2015. The Group recorded a
approximately RMB112.3 million in 2016, representing an
increase of approximately 64.7% YoY. As a result of the
increase in product orders and a higher proportion of the brass
electroplating wire production lines in the sales mix, the Group’s
gross profit margin increased by approximately 2.6% YoY and
the gross profit increased to approximately RMB32.9 million
accordingly (2015: approximately RMB18.2 million). In addition,
with continuous effort, the Group reversed impairment provision
for receivables of approximately RMB14.9 million by collecting
some of the impaired trade receivables. As a result, the Group
successfully recovered from a loss and turned to a profit of
approximately RMB28.6 million. Overall, the Company recorded
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of
approximately RMB28.6 million driven by the aforesaid factors,
as compared with the net loss attributable to shareholders of
the Company of approximately RMB88.8 million for 2015.

stable than revenue of

ZZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Bt #5 B B8 FINANCIAL REVIEW
A Revenue
EE12ABLERE
Year ended 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
EHHE ARBTR % EHHE AREBTT %
Unit(s) sold RMB’000 % Unit(s) sold RMB’000 %
B WM 4 EER  Brass electroplating wire production
lines 59,447 53.0 2 23,571 34.6
HiWEER Other production lines 11,363 10.1 2 1,856 2.7
B Standalone machineries 83 10,982 9.8 173 25,718 37.7
ERRME  TEMHNR Mould repairing equipment, component
it 4 parts and accessories F&ERAN/A 28,439 25.3 A3 FAN/A 15,590 22.9
el A Rental income TERAN/A 2,053 1.8 A E AN/A 1,433 2.1
112,284 100.0 68,168 100.0

REBR06FHNRRALDAEARE
112,300,0007T © #20154F #) A R ¥
68,200,0007T 3 1N 49 A K #44,100,0007T
(3 4964.7%) ° ZIGREEZR R FNHFITE
EHERMISHERBRMAE -

EZRR06FHNHEEWANRBARE
59,400,0007C © #2015 # A R ¥
23,600,000 T3 h1#1152.2% ° 120164
BoEEHRRMMMEERERTPEM -
MR2015FRIEMELERERTFEM -
EXmMBRRER BEEERE
201645 42 R 5 1% B 2k L % & & 98 5 4R o
MEEBRREPIIESR -

Hfh £ EAR o E A& E 5 R2016F /Y 5
S A# A A RE11,400,0007T © #2015
& 49 A R ¥1,000,0007T 1 h0 £7512.2% o
ZIBEEZHN KM R P RORIE %
A Eo b A EE AR BB 20155 By I & 18 N
E2016FWTE ©

Our revenue increased by approximately RMB44.1 million or
approximately 64.7% to approximately RMB112.3 million for
2016 from approximately RMB68.2 million for 2015. The
increase is mainly due to the recovery in downstream industry
and growth in market demand.

Brass electroplating wire production lines. Revenue from sales of
brass electroplating wire production lines increased by
approximately 152.2% to approximately RMB59.4 million for
2016 from approximately RMB23.6 million for 2015. 5 sets of
brass electroplating wire production lines were accepted by the
in 2016 while 2 sets were accepted by the
in 2015. Resulting from the growth of market
demand, more brass electroplating wire production lines have
been accepted by our customers after testing during 2016
according to their expansion plan.

customers
customers

Other production lines. Revenue from sales of other production
lines increased by approximately 512.2% to approximately
RMB11.4 million for 2016 from approximately RMB1.9 million for
2015. The increase was mainly due to an increase in the
number of other production lines accepted by our customers
after testing from 2 sets for 2015 to 7 sets for 2016.

5 N ERFH KR M AR 2D E WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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RE#EEEM % EELEKHER
2015 M173E B D £2016F HIB3E °

EERE - TR - ERERHE - T
R EHFR2016FMHERABHAR
#28,400,0008 BT * B2015FHARK
15,600,0007T & /N 4982.4% ° %G 18 £ &
HRRAEFRENZERERYS FATE
INET R -

HE WA - W ARBR20164F 2015
FHAFEZFHNREERHE - @R
2016 HHFHEY L hn - WA S UL ALE N -

EFREMZE

RNEBEHEF H06FH0H0ARE
18,200,0007T 1 AN #980.8% = 20164 A 4J
AR #32,900,0007T - AEBEHEEEF
R 20154 # £926.7%18 Hl = 2016 5 K 49
29.3% ' FERTABEREFEAME
mAB L E A =B E R A E 5 = A4
HEEGNEELIRSME -

Hilgr A
AREBENEMPABR0FNHARE
3,700,0007T T F£4748.6% = 2016 F #I 49 A
FR#£1,900,0007T + = 2 HNUERE B
P B o

/Eﬁiﬁ*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Standalone machineries. Revenue from sales of standalone
machineries decreased by approximately 57.3% to
approximately RMB11.0 million for 2016 from approximately
RMB25.7 million for 2015. The decrease was due to the
decrease in sale quantity in the standalone machineries, with
the number of standalone machineries being sold decreased
from 173 sets in 2015 to 83 sets in 2016.

Mould repairing equipment, component parts, and accessories.
Revenue from sales of mould repairing equipment, component
parts, and accessories increased by approximately 82.4% to
approximately RMB28.4 million for 2016 from approximately
RMB15.6 million for 2015. The increase was primarily due to the
increase in equipment modification services provided to
customers.

Rental income. Revenue from rental income arose from the
Group’s investment properties, which was rented to third parties
for 2016 and 2015. As more properties had been rented out
during 2016, the rental income has increased.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately 80.8% from
approximately RMB18.2 million for 2015 to approximately
RMB32.9 million for 2016. Our overall gross profit margin
increased from approximately 26.7% for 2015 to approximately
29.3% for 2016 due to a higher proportion of the brass
electroplating wire production lines in the sales mix, with its
relatively higher gross profit margin as compared to other
products.

Other income

Our other income decreased by approximately 48.6% from
approximately RMBG.7 million for 2015 to approximately RMB1.9
million for 2016, primarily due to less government subsidies
received.

ZZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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AEBMHEERIHW0FHHARE
3,700,0007T 18 hN4316.2% E 2016 F HIXI A
R #4,300,0007T © = E BN E & 1
e

fTBRMX
REBMITHAXH0GFHHARE
117,500,0007C J3 2> £2016F K 4 A R &
19,900,0007T ° M ThE BHREA LR
7% ) Uk [o] B 5 e U SR IE 1& T Uk [ 28 95 R
B8 5 & WK I8 B E 20165 & WK B R
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i 7R 20154 1 [ FE U 5% T8 Rl (B 5 5 )% 58
# A R #84,500,0007T ° RIBF © ARAE
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R R Z IR D -

Hitblrsz — 88

20164 - AEBEHBHMWEFEOA
F2 #3,700,0007T * M20154F HIJ $% 15 H b
I 25 R B 4 A R #2,800,0007T © H b Ik
TETERREHENAARBENFEAHE
ABENEREERERARAAEE
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hEBEEZEKE -
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20165 - AEBERFH B A FEN A
A K #1,600,0007T - 20154 &9 Bf 1% U
ANFELN A A REEL600,0007T @ B 15 U
ARLEEZHRE L WS KA B HZ R
DRTE -

ﬁﬁ*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses increased by approximately 16.2% from
approximately RMB3.7 million for 2015 to approximately RMB4.3
million for 2016, primarily due to the increase of transportation
expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased from approximately
RMB117.5 million for 2015 to approximately RMB19.9 million for
2016. This is primarily because there was a net reversal of
allowance for impairment of receivables of approximately
RMB6.2 million during 2016 resulting from collection of some
impaired trade receivables after the continuous effort of the
Group to collect the receivables while a net allowance for
impairment of receivables amounting to approximately RMB84.5
million was made during 2015. Meanwhile, the staff
remuneration expenses and research and development
expenses have also decreased due to the Group’s strict control
over the cost expenditure.

Other gains — net

The Group recorded net other gains of approximately RMB3.7
million in 2016, compared with the net other gains of
approximately RMB2.8 million in 2015. Other gains mainly
included the gains on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and unrealised fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Finance income — net

The Group recorded a net finance income of approximately
RMB1.6 million in 2016, compared with the net finance income
of approximately RMB4.6 million in 2015. The decrease in
finance income was mainly due to the reduction in foreign
exchange gain and bank interest income.
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ﬁﬁ*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income tax credit

The Group recorded a credit to income tax expense of
approximately RMB12.7 million for 2016, compared with the
credit to income tax expense of approximately RMB3.0 million
for 2015. The Group recognised the deferred income tax assets
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Trade receivables

Our gross trade receivables decreased by approximately 20.1%
from approximately RMB243.3 million at 31 December 2015 to
approximately RMB194.4 million as at 31 December 2016. The
decrease was primarily due to the adoption of more stringent
collection policy over the customers and the
repayment ability of our customers resulting from the gradual
recovery in downstream industries. Meanwhile, the Group
collected approximately RMB14.9 million impaired trade
receivables during 2016, and the allowance for trade receivables
decreased from approximately RMB106.7 million at the end of
2015 to approximately RMB87.3 million at the end of 2016.

increase of

Inventories

Our inventories decreased by approximately 27.5% from
approximately RMB63.3 million at the end of 2015 to
approximately RMB45.9 million at the end of 2016, mainly
because more inventories had been consumed during 2016,
and our tightening up of inventories control upon taking into

account our anticipated production schedule.

Trade payables

Our trade payables increased by approximately 18.2% from
approximately RMB11.0 million at the end of 2015 to
approximately RMB13.0 million at the end of 2016, primarily due
to an increase in our purchase of raw materials during the Year.
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ﬁﬁ*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital being financed by our operating
cash flows.

As at 31 December 2016, the total cash and bank balances of
the Group were approximately RMB206.7 million (2015:
approximately RMB182.9 million), comprising cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB193.6 million (31 December
2015: approximately RMB169.8 million) and restricted cash of
approximately RMB13.1 million (2015: approximately RMB13.1
million).

As at 31 December 2016, the current ratio of the Group was
6.0 (2015: 6.3). The decrease was mainly due to certain
receivables being collected after 1 year based on the
agreement with customers.

The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as total borrowings
divided by total equity) was zero (31 December 2015: zero).

The Group was in a strong net cash position as at 31
December 2016 and 2015. The Group has sufficient and readily
available finance resources for general working capital
requirement and foreseeable capital expenditure.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no borrowings (2015:
Nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In 2016, the Group’s capital expenditures amounted to
approximately RMB11.3 million (2015: approximately RMB27.1
million) which was mainly related to the construction of the new
manufacturing facility located in Wuxi (the “New Wuxi Facility”).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments of the Group are set out in note 31(aq)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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/Eﬁiﬁ*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign exchange risk arises when transaction or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in the PRC with most of its transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group’s assets and
liabilities, and transactions arising from its operations do not
expose the Group to material foreign exchange risk as the
Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016 were
denominated in the respective Group companies’ functional
currencies.

During the Year, the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purposes. The management will
continue to monitor foreign currency risk and adopt prudent
measures as and when appropriate.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Company’s H shares have been listed (the “Listing”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 11 November 2014 (the “Listing Date”). The
net proceeds from the Listing after the deduction of
underwriting commissions, fees and listing-related expenses
amounted to approximately HK$209.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB165.3 million).

With a view to improve efficiency in the use of the Company’s
temporary idle raised proceeds, in the circumstance that the
Company shall ensure that there will have no impacts on the
projects construction of raised proceeds and the utilization of
raised proceeds, the Company has proposed to utilize part of
the temporary idle raised proceeds to purchase wealth
management products with high security, good liquidity and
promised guarantee from financial institutions, in order to
increase the capital revenue, improve the efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of the Company’s temporarily idle
raised proceeds, which in turn shall further enhance the overall
revenue of the Company and pursue better investment return to
the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The amount of
purchasing wealth management products or the total amount of
unexpired wealth management products held at any time shall
be no more than RMB75 million. The duration of purchasing
wealth management products from banks by the utilization of
idle raised proceeds shall not be more than 12 months.
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,Eﬁiﬁ-]\*ﬁ' MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In view of the recent business development strategies and
reasons set out above, the Board has resolved to temporarily
allocate no more than RMB75 million out of the unutilized
proceeds for investment in the wealth management products.
Together with the income to be generated from the wealth
management products, the Company will continue apply the net
proceeds for the construction of the New Wuxi Facility and its
new research & development centre to be established in the
New Wuxi Facility (the “New Research & Development
Centre”) as stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
October 2014 (the “Prospectus”). For more details regarding
the change of use of net proceeds from the Listing, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2016.

The above-mentioned change of use of proceeds was approved
by the shareholders of the Company by way of a special
resolution of the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 7 June 2016. Since the authority granted to
the Board to purchase wealth management products with the
temporary idle proceeds will expire one year after such
approval, a special resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to renew
such authority for the Board. For more details of this special
resolution, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 21
April 2017.

Up to 31 December 2016, the Group used approximately
HK$88.5 million, HK$9.5 million and HK$21 million for (i) funding
the construction of the New Wuxi Facility and the New
Research & Development Centre; (i) developing certain targeted
research and development projects; and (iii) general working
capital and other general corporate purposes, respectively. In
addition, the Group utilised a part of the proceeds for
purchasing wealth management products, which amounted to
approximately RMB30.0 million as at 31 December 2016. As at
31 December 2016, the unused proceeds of approximately
HK$52.7 million were deposited in licensed banks in the PRC.
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/Eﬁiﬁ*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

2017 will be a year full of challenges and opportunities. After
the market downturn, only the fittest could survive and the tire
industry has started to recover in a gradual manner. Through
consistent and precise management, cost control and lean
manufacturing, Sunlit’'s management successfully maintained the
leading position of the Group during the Year. In 2017, domestic
supply-side reform will gradually deepen. It is believed that
automobile industry will continue to recover in 2017 after
reaching a record high in 2016. In addition, the boom in
photovoltaic industry also drove up electroplated brass wire
demand. In these circumstances, Sunlit will face more
opportunities. The management expected that in this coming
financial year, the Group’s business will continue to grow
steadily and its scale will continue to expand. The Group is
taking strategic guidance approach, which will strengthen
technological development, and train technological management
personnel and technological innovation personnel. In addition,
the Group will actively explore overseas markets, stabilize and
expand existing market share, in order to restore the Group’s
long-term sustainable growth and profitability. Although market
volatility may lead to short-term uncertainty in performance,
Sunlit is confident that it is well prepared to achieve further
breakthroughs at market maturity and is committed to
maintaining the interests of the Group’s shareholders.
Meanwhile, the Group will be further supported by more
domestic and overseas customers, allowing it to not only
maintain a leading position in domestic market, but also move
forward to realize the goals of becoming a global leading
producer of steel cord products and equipment and achieving
better performance.
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ﬁﬁ*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 132
full-time employees (2015: 159), including administration, finance,
internal audit, research and development, technical application,
quality control, manufacturing, procurement, sales and
marketing staff. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group’s total employee remuneration was approximately
RMB15.3 million (2015: approximately RMB19.6 million).

The Group places great emphasis on recruiting and training
quality personnel by providing orientation programs to the new
employees and on-going internal training to the existing
employees to enhance their industry, technical and product
knowledge, their work ethics as well as their knowledge of
industry quality standards and work safety standards.
Furthermore, the Group encourages its employees to take
advanced courses and obtain professional certifications.

The Group is confident that its employees will continue to
provide a solid foundation for the success of the Group and will
maintain a high standard of service to our customers.

The Group has not experienced any disruption of its normal
business operations due to labour disputes or significant
turnover of staff. The Directors consider that the Group has
maintained a very good relationship with its staff.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save and except for the wealth management products, the
Group had no significant investments held during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, the Group had no acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
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/Eﬁi/i'l\*ﬁ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the cash deposits in the amount of
approximately RMB13.1 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB13.1 million) were pledged to banks as
security for notes payable and letter of guarantee for export
sales. Save for that, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets as at 31 December 2016 or 31 December 2015.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

In the future, the Group will continue to implement its diversified
development strategy and proactively search for potential
investment opportunities.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus or elsewhere in this report,

the Group had no future plans for material investments as at 31
December 2016.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Degang (R#Efl), aged 44, is our executive
Director and the chairman of the Group since 24 July 2012. Mr.
Zhang is one of the founders of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the Group’s postulating business development
plans and overseeing our Group’s overall corporate strategies.
He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and
strategic committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang Degang is the
brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.

Mr. Zhang Degang obtained a bachelor's degree in computer
science and technology (e-business) (FF&E # #2817 iy (BF 75
%)) through distance learning from Nanjing University (7 &= X
E) in March 2005. In January 2013, Mr. Zhang was accredited
by FEHEBRIHEIEZES B IHEMFE (Chengjiang
Road Office of the Chengjiang Road Working Committee of the
Communist Party of China*) as the “FAE {® ¥ X~ (Star
Entrepreneur®) for the year 2012. In April 2013, Mr. Zhang was
awarded with “#E 5T A — 4 8HE" (Wuxi City 1 May Labour
Medal*) by M4 T& (Wuxi City General Union*). Mr. Zhang
was awarded the Labour Model of Wuxi in May 2015.

From June 1990 to June 1994, Mr. Zhang Degang worked in ;T
ke 8 4B B (Jiangyin Steel Wire Factory®); from June 1994 to
November 2003, Mr. Zhang worked in China Bekaert Steel
Cord Co., Ltd. (FE B <B4l & F R A 7F]), where he gained
considerable experience in the steel wire industry. From
October 2002 to April 2004, Mr. Zhang acted as the supervisor
of I =R I AR AR Jiangyin Sanzhi Gongkong Company
Limited®) ("Jiangyin Sanzhi”), which was principally engaged in
the installation, modification, repair and maintenance of
industrial automatic control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was
deregistered in December 2015. From September 2005 to July
2012, Mr. Zhang acted as the chairman, director and general
manager of )Lf& Bk TI2BRAR] (Jiangyin Beite Machinery
and Engineering Company Limited®), which specialised in the
sale and manufacture of industrial automatic equipment. In order
to allow Mr. Zhang to focus on the business of the Group, /L&
BER#®W ITREERAT (angyin Beite Machinery and
Engineering Company Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.
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In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms.
Zhu Yingxuan) established 5T iZMR TIZBRARF] (Wuxi
Sunlit Machinery & Engineering Company Limited®) (the
“Predecessor Company”) with Mr. Zhang Degiang. He has
been the director of Tl =M TIE#E W AR A A (Jiangyin Sanzhi
Gongkong Machinery Company Limited*) (the “Sanzhi
Gongkong”) since April 2009 and he acted as the general
manager of Sanzhi Gongkong from April 2009 to December
2011; he has also been the director and general manager of )T
BB N ERER B BRAGA (Jangsu Sunlit Equipment
Technology Company Limited®) (the “Jiangsu Sunlit”) since
August 2009; the general manager of %5 /B EE R AR A
A] (Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Company Limited*) (the
“Haisheng Software”) since July 2011 and its director since
December 2012; and the director of #$5 FiE B &L R AR
AF] (Wuxi Shangda Automation Technology Company Limited*)
(the “Wuxi Shangda”) since December 2011. Wuxi Shangda
was deregistered in April 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Degiang (3R 85&), aged 47, is our executive
Director and general manager. Mr. Zhang is also one of the
founders of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the day-
to-day operations, strategic development and management of
the Group’s business. Mr. Zhang Degiang is also a member of
the remuneration and appraisal committee and strategic
committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang Degiang is the brother of
Mr. Zhang Degang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.
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Mr. Zhang Degiang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (& & Z # ) from
Southeast University (R AZ2) in July 1991. In August 1998,
he was conferred by #& £ T2 £ 1l AR E B XL LT E
Z B & (Wuxi City Engineer Technology Intermediate
Qualification Socialisation Evaluation Committee®) with the
qualification of engineer. In November 2013, he was granted the
qualification of senior engineer by JT & & #E 5T # W TIE = 4
BE M ERKFTEZ 8 g(iangsu Wuxi City Mechanical
Engineering Senior Professional Technique Qualification
Evaluation Committee*) . In January 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang
was recognised by & A RBA (Zhoutie Town People’s
Government*) and FEIHEEZERFEHIEZEE (Zhoute Town
Committee of the Communist Party of China*) as the “BHE K&K
(#%32)” (Star Factory Director (Manager)*) for the year of 2010.
He was also accredited as the “8 F R & 1t % X (Outstanding
Non-public Entrepreneur®) for two consecutive years of 2010
and 2011 by EH WA RBAT (Wuxi People’s Government*) and
PEAEE®EHHTZEZ (Wuxi Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China*).

From August 1991 to October 1995, Mr. Zhang Degiang worked
in BEMCEXEBAEREI QA (Haying Enterprise Group
Company Limited*®), where he gained experience in designing
machinery. From October 1995 to April 2006, Mr. Zhang worked
as the department head of the production and technical
department in &5 1HEFA R A7 (Wuxi Murata Electronics
Company Limited*), which was principally engaged in the sale
and manufacture of electronic products and components. From
April 2004 to November 2005, he acted as the supervisor of
Jiangyin Sanzhi, which was principally engaged in the
installation, modification, repair and maintenance of industrial
automatic control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was deregistered in
December 2015.

In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degiang founded the Predecessor
Company with Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms. Zhu
Yingxuan).
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From March 2006 to March 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was the
director of the Predecessor Company. In March 2011, Mr.
Zhang Degiang took up the role as the general manager of the
Company, and he acted as the executive Director since July
2012. From April 2009 to December 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang
acted as the director of Sanzhi Gongkong and as its supervisor
since December 2011. He has also been acting as the
supervisor of Jiangsu Sunlit since August 2009; the supervisor
of Haisheng Software since July 2011; and the general manager
of Wuxi Shangda since December 2011, Wuxi Shangda was
deregistered in April 2016.

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. ZHANG Jinghua (5k 5 ZE), aged 54, is the non-executive
Director. Ms. Zhang is the sister of Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr.
Zhang Degiang.

Ms. Zhang Jinghua graduated from high school in July 1978. In
February 2012 and February 2013, respectively, she was
recognised by B X E E T M £ (Jiangyin Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party of China®) and JLETA R
BT (People’s Government of the Jiangyin City*) as the “/85%
48 4238” (outstanding general manager®).

From March 1979 to November 1991, Ms. Zhang Jinghua
worked as a teacher in L2 ZZEHE (Jiangyin City Yaosai
Secondary School*). From October 1991 to October 2002, she
worked in JTREBBE X BMR AR (iangyin Liantong Industrial
Company Limited*). Ms. Zhang obtained a qualification
certificate of speciality and technology in statistics (elementary
level) approved and issued by the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (FEARKEMBEAEE) and conferred by the National
Bureau of Statistics of the PRC (Bl R & 5t /&) in October 1998.
From October 2002 to November 2005, she acted as the
director and manager of Jiangyin Sanzhi. From March 2004 to
November 2009, she acted as the director and general
manager of TR ={F TZE# M B R A7 (angyin Sanjia
Gongkong Machinery Company Limited*), which was principally
engaged in the design, sale and manufacture of industrial
automation control system. In order to allow Ms. Zhang to focus
on the business of the Group, TR = TIE#EKER QR
(Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery Company Limited*) was
deregistered in July 2012.
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Ms. Zhang Jinghua joined the Group in April 2009 as the
director of Sanzhi Gongkong, and in December 2011, she was
appointed as its general manager. Sanzhi Gongkong was
deregistered in December 2015. Since July 2012, she has acted
as our vice-general manager (&|# 4 ). In August 2013, she
was appointed as the executive Director. In August 2015, she
was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director and resigned as the vice-general manager.

Mr. GAO Feng (5U&), aged 49, joined the Group in July 2012,
and was appointed as the non-executive Director since 24 July
2012. Mr. Gao is the general partner of F /8 FEREEEHR L
(BFRA %) (Shanghai Yudao Investment Management Centre
(Limited Partnership)®) and +/&ttiE KEHRHAL(EREE)
(Shanghai Shidao Investment Development Centre (Limited
Partnership)*), who are the general partner and limited partner of
Yudao Tiansui (one of our Pre-Listing Investors), respectively. He
is also a member of the audit committee of the Board.

Mr. Gao Feng graduated from Hangzhou University (#7/1 K£2)
(now being part of Zhejiang University (7T K2) with a
bachelor’'s degree in law in July 1989. He is a holder of PRC
lawyer’s licence issued by E/EMRIAR (Shanghai City Ministry
of Justice®) in January 1991. From 1998 to 2013, Mr. Gao
worked in various renowned law firms in the PRC and is
currently a partner of a law firm.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Chaojian (2IEi%), aged 51, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in July 2012. He is also a
member of the audit committee, the chairman of the
remuneration and appraisal committee and a member of the
strategic committee of the Board. Mr. Liu is not involved in the
Group’s research and development activities.

Mr. Liu Chaojian graduated from % A& E LS (Xian
Institute of Metallurgy and Architecture®) (now known as Xi'an
University of Architecture and Technology (78 & 2 £ &l £ A )
with a bachelor’'s degree in metallurgy in July 1987. In
November 1998, he was conferred by the State Bureau of
Metallurgical Industry (BZ/8 &L 3% /) with the qualification of
an advanced level engineer. Since July 1987, Mr. Liu has
worked in the China Metallurgical Industry Planning and
Research Institute (V8 &€ T MR EIFF 3T PT) and his current
positions are the deputy chief engineer and senior engineer at
professor level.
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From September 2010 to August 2013, Mr. Liu Chaojian acted
as the independent director of Ningxia Xinri Hengli Steel Wire
Company Limited (EE %1 B1E D M4 @R DB R 2 7)) (Shanghai
Stock Exchange Stock Code: 600165).

Mr. GAO Fuping (& & F), aged 53, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Gao is
also a member of the remuneration and appraisal committee
and the nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Gao Fuping obtained a master’s degree in law from Shanxi
University (IUFEAZ2) in July 1993 and a doctor’s degree in civil
commercial law (R®EJAZ) from China University of Political
Science and Law (FEIEEKRE) in July 1998. In September
1995, Mr. Gao was admitted as a qualified lawyer by the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC. In September 2001, he was
recognised as the “2001FE £+ [EHE X2 E" (dawn scholar of
the year 2001 (seventh year) by F/8M# BEZ 82 (Shanghai
Education Committee®) and L8 M A EEBE S E (Shanghai
Educational Development Foundation®).

Since July 1998, Mr. Gao Fuping has lectured in East China
University of Political Science and Law (¥ BUZ AZ) and has
served as lecturer, deputy professor and professor. From June
2004 to February 2014, Mr. Gao served as the dean of the
Intellectual Property School (%15 E # 2Fx). Since March 2014,
Mr. Gao has served as the dean of BfE A 72T (Property Law
Research Institute*) of East China University of Political Science
and Law (¥R BUE K2).

From June 2011 to March 2014, Mr. Gao Fuping acted as an
independent non-executive director of Founder Broadband
Network Service Company Limited (77 IE & 75 48 4% AR 15 I D B R
AA]), a joint stock company established in the PRC, which was
converted into Founder Broadband Network Services Co., Ltd.
(FEEFRELZRB AR AR in April 2014.

Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo (fJ&BA), aged 45, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Ho
is also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
the nomination committee of the Board.
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Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) with
an honours diploma in accounting in July 1996. He was
admitted as an associate of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in March 2000 and is a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has over 13 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance-related matters. As of the date
of this report, Mr. Ho has worked or is working in the following
companies listed on the Stock Exchange:

Z1% g 13 4% 5% BB i 5
Name Stock Code Position Tenure
REEEERAT 464 Fitig e 200045 H Z 20064 7H
Best Wide Group Limited (BEm2001F11 A B 1E) accounting manager May 2000 to July 2006
(delisted in November 2001)
BXREaERERERA 254 WITES 2004 3H 220045 9A
(A B 2 B P O T %ﬁfzﬁ executive director March 2004 to September 2004
RAZEREEBERDA)
National United Resources Holdings
Limited B 5 48 8 2004 37 E2004F12A
(formerly known as eCyberChina financial controller March 2004 to December 2004
Holdings Limited at the material time)
—RESEERAR (RNARSHENMNE 82 HITES 20051 H £200652 7
RaZBEBERARAF) executive director January 2005 to February 2006
V1 Group Limited (formerly known as
Yanion International Holdings Limited at SEBREED 2005%F 4 A £ 2006F3A
the material time) qualified accountant April 2005 to March 2006
BERREERRA 467 KR 2006 9H £201043A
United Energy Group L|mited accounting manager September 2006 to March 2010
NGIEE 200844 A % 201042 A
company secretary April 2008 to February 2010
RITRAEREREROERAR 8301 NEWE 20136 7R &20144F2H28H
Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High company secretary July 2013 to 28 February 2014
Technology Corporation Limited
ESEEEERERA 2212 MBBERARWE 2014F 4R EBHI

Future Bright Mining HoIdings Limited

EARENEERBRBERA 6866
Zuoli Kochuang Micro-finance Company

Limited
BEEEZERERAR 8315

King Force Group Holdings Limited

chief financial officer & April 2014 to present
company secretary

BUFNTES 2014F4REB AT

Independent non-executive April 2014 to present
director

BIUERTES 20165F9A £ B Al

Independent non-executive September 2016 to present
director
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From April 2010 to February 2014, Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has
also acted as the accounting manager of Carlico International
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kinco Enterprises
Limited). Mr. Ho has also acted as the financial controller of
Great China Brokerage Limited on a part-time basis from
October 2012 to February 2014.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. PENG Jiashan (& M0LlU), aged 53, was appointed as our
Supervisor as a shareholder representative with effect from 15
August 2014. Mr. Peng graduated from T # AKE (Jiangsu
University) majoring in mechanical and electronic engineering
(HEETTH2) in July 2002. Mr. Peng received the qualification
of engineer (LI2RN) from EIFTAER (Wuxi City Personnel
Bureau*) in September 2003.

From July 1988 to September 1991, Mr. Peng Jiashan worked
in & 85 # M R & 2 K (Wuxi Institute of Machinery
Manufacturing®, currently known as #8558 ¥ R TEE (Wuxi
School of Technology*) as an internship tutor (& & 5 & £ Af).
From September 1991 to August 2005, Mr. Peng worked in T
femh 2B T &4/ (Jiangyin City Transport Workers School*) as
a teacher. Since August 2005 till now, Mr. Peng has worked in
IEETIRBERMHKEF LR iangsu Provincial Jiangyin
Central School of Vocational Technology Education®, currently
known as L& & TRFPEHZEFEZER (Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin
Secondary Professional School*)) as a teacher. Mr. Peng has
been granted jointly by F#TlemRBHEZEE (Jiangyin City
Transport Bureau Commission®) and i TREMAE B (Jiangyin
City Transport Bureau®) the title of %c# 4 (T1E)#& (advanced
(working) producer®) in February 2000 and January 2001,
respectively.

Ms. WEI Yi (f& ZE), aged 47, was appointed as our Supervisor
as a shareholder representative with effect from 15 August
2014. Ms. Wei obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (& 18 Z # ) from
Southeast University (BREIAER) in July 1991. From August 1996
to July 1999, Ms. Wei studied Modern Financial Accounting
courses at Xidian University (75 % % F £ KX2) and graduated
from Xidian University in July 1997. Ms. Wei received the
certificate of accounting professional issued by the Financial
Department of Shaanxi Province (PE784& B B E2) in April 2008.

ZZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016

27



%% . %%&Egﬁﬁéiigﬁﬁjﬁ BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

RREAZEEE  SRIZAEFREAR
RN E B B IR B TH2RD o 200541
AZE2008F12 AHAME - M 7EPRIOAT 2 88
ERARIMERBREFEMBEE - B2009F5H
BES  BRIEERETFRECRIDE
PRARMERE B -

BEELLT  35m B012F7TAREZ
FRESE EREINREK - B LTHM2006
FoRARBERPREBFBERAE BT
FEEGRMPEER) - tB2000F7H

BEFERARMER  ZEBRUREIE
£ - B2006F 61 £ £2007F2H Ik fib
FBRARFEEEORGEBERARED
SARCGAEEERBEBEYR(FEDERA
7)) BESFIE - %5 LT B2009F5H
RERNFER  BEASHBIE-

BREEE

BEZ KL 505% - 1988F 68 2 XN #
MAKE - EEERIELEFPEFE - 2000
FOARBEMMEXRRMABRBEIHEES
PNEABARERTHITIZEAEER -

18 B 32 5 4 1988 F 8 A £20024F 58 « £
REREMERIMESLIE 2002658 %
2004 3H AR MEBREBRATER
& T 2 A0 200438 £2005%F 28 » £/T
BEE)IMt THR AR EHE TZA: 2005
FIAE20NE7TA  HIREILIAER
NATEERMTHBE  2011F8AREAR
TIETHELE - 2016F108 B A a2
TR o

After graduating from Southeast University, Ms. Wei worked as
an engineer in FEIARMBNELZEE (General Logistics
Department of the People’s Liberation Army*). From January
2005 to December 2008, Ms. Wei worked as the chief financial
officer at PRFA4I ERIEABBR A A (Shaanxi Red Star Boiler
Company Limited®). Since May 2009 till now, Ms. Wei has
worked as the deputy general manager of 2 EFRHE CRII)
B BB 2 A (Zhuo Sui Electronic Science and Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited®).

Ms. YANG Jinghua (15 & Z), aged 35, was appointed as our
Supervisor as the employee representative with effect from July
2012. Ms. Yang graduated with a major in business
administration (modern corporate administration) from /1 9% & #%&
EIRAE (China Central Radio and TV University*) in May 20086.
From July 2000 to June 2006, she worked in Wuxi Alps
Electronic Company Limited (5T B EHEFAHRAF) and
her last position was training officer. From June 2006 to
February 2007, she worked in K F& & i&# RIS H R A7 &5
2~ a] (Nippon Express (China) Company Limited* (now known
as RABBIEYR(FER)BRAF), which was engaged in
statistics work. Since May 2009, Ms. Yang has worked in the
Company on personnel related work.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ou Guojian, aged 50, graduated from Soochow University
in June 1988, majoring in Organic Chemistry. In June 2000, he
was granted the engineer qualification by Job Title Working
Group of Technical Professionals of Changzhou City (% M =
ERMABBBEIEAES/ ERLQE).

Mr. Ou Guojian served as the technical quality manager in & i
2 R (Wujin Pesticide Factory®) from August 1988 to May
2002, the R&D Engineer in &M EE R B E R A7 (Changzhou
Kangli Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*) from May 2002 to March
2004; the R&D Engineer in JTEH)I{ETHR AR Jiangyin
Baichuan Chemical Co., Ltd.*) from March 2004 to February
2005, the production technology minister in L& Tt THR
~|] (Jiangyin Chengjiang Chemical Co., Ltd.") from March
2005 to July 2011. In August 2011, he joined the Company as
sales director and was promoted to vice-general manager in
October 2016.
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Mr. WANG Liming (¥ 3LBA), aged 36, graduated with a major
in automatic control from # 85 B ¥ & T2 Ft (Wuxi Institute of
Technology*) in July 2004, and a major in business
administration from JTFEIAZ (Jiangnan University*) in July 2015.
Mr. Wang was granted the title of “Intelligent Staff” in the 2013—-
2014 Labour Competition (20132014 E 8 T4 B EEE) in
April 2015, which was organised by the Federation of Trade
Unions of Changan Street, Huishan (BILE R Z & BL T D).

Mr. Wang Liming acted as the head of electric department of
Il =fF T # B BR Q[ (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong
Machinery Company Limited*) from July 2004 to March 2010.
Ik ={fFTZE#MEBPR~AQF Jangyin Sanja Gongkong
Machinery Company Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.

Mr. Wang Liming acted as the vice-general manager of Jiangyin
Sanzhi since March 2010. Jiangyin Sanzhi was deregistered in
December 2015.

Mr. Wang Liming acted as the director of the production
department of the Company, and was promoted to be vice-
general manager in August 2015.

Mr. ZHAO Yuanxing (#8Jc8), aged 51, was graduated with a
major in financial management from R RAME A2 (Nanjing
Normal University*) in June 2000, and obtained a qualification
certificate of speciality and technology in accounting
(intermediate level) approved and recognized by the Ministry of
Personnel of the PRC (A R £ E] A% EB) and the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC (2 A R A1 Bf B &) in May 2002.
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Mr. Zhao Yuanxing worked for JT k& E1% 8 #f 5 R A7) (Jiangyin
Xingcheng Steel Limited Company*) from November 1984 to
September 1987; studied full-time in A & & B B B B K
(Metallurgical Economic Management School*) in Jiangsu
Province; acted as the financial supervisor of I [& B & 4 7&
# B B 2 7 Wiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Limited
Company*) from July 1989 to May 2001; acted as the financial
principal of &5 M E MM R AF (Wuxi Xingcheng Steel
Products Co., Ltd*) from May 2001 to February 2011; acted as
the chief financial officer of EHFTHEEBEER QA (Wuxi
Zhongda Motors Company Limited*) from February 2011 to
February 2012. He acted as the financial manager of the
Company from February 2012 to September 2012, the head of
the internal audit department of the Company from October
2012 to May 2013, a manager of the integrated management
department unit from May 2013 to August 2015, and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since August 2015.

* For identification purposes only
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On 20 July 2012, the current session of the board of
supervisors of the Company was established upon the approval
of the inaugural meeting of the Company. The current session
of the board of supervisors comprises of three supervisors,
namely Mr. Peng Jiashan, Ms. Wei Yi and Ms. Yang Jinghua.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, for the Company’s
long term interests and its shareholders’ interests, the board of
supervisors of the Company acted in strict compliance with
regulatory documents, the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”) and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and earnestly
performed their duties of supervision as to the acts of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. The main
area of work of the board of supervisors in 2016 is summarised

relevant laws, regulations, rules,

as follows:

. MEETINGS CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors of the Company convened two
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016.

II. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The work of the second session of the board of
supervisors mainly comprised of the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of resolutions of
the general meetings
The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision and inspection of the implementation of
the resolutions in general meetings by the Board and
the senior management through observation and
attendance at the board meetings and general
meetings. The board of supervisors is of the opinion
that the Directors and senior management of the
Company have diligently performed their duties in
compliance with resolutions of the general meetings.
No violation of any laws or regulations or the Articles
of Association or any act which jeopardises the
interests of the Company or shareholders of the
Company has been found in the performance of
duties by the Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(Continued)

2.

Inspection over legal compliance of the Group’s
operations

The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision on a regular basis over the legal
compliance and rationality of the Group’s operation
and management in its ordinary works. It has also
exercised supervision over work performance of the
Board and senior management. The board of
supervisors is of the opinion that the Group’s
operation is sound and rational, and is in compliance
with all applicable laws, regulations and rules and the
Articles of Association. The members of the Board
and senior management of the Group have
conscientiously and diligently performed their duties,
and none of their acts would prejudice the interests of
the Group or the shareholders of the Company.

Inspection over the Group’s daily operating
activities

The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision over the Group’s operating activities. The
board of supervisors is of the opinion that the Group
has a sound internal control system and has made a
great progress in the formulation and implementation
of its internal work procedures, thus effectively
controlled its exposure to various operating risks. The
Group’s operation is in compliance with the PRC laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association.
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Il. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(Continued)

4. Inspection over the Group’s financial condition
The board of supervisors of the Company has verified
the Group’s 2016 consolidated financial statements,
supervised and inspected the Group’s implementation
of relevant financial policies and legislations as well as
details on the Group’s assets, financial income and
expenditure. The board of supervisors is of the
opinion that the consolidated financial statements for
2016 fairly reflected its financial position and
operating results.

Looking forward, the board of supervisors of the Company will
continue to carry out its duties in strict compliance with the
Articles of Association and the relevant laws and regulations
and protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

Peng Jiashan
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Jiangsu, China, 29 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ The Board
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

returns. reviews its

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance practices
and the relevant regulations of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board is satisfied that
the Company has complied with the CG Code provisions for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and supervisors of the Company. Upon making
specific enquiries of all the Directors and supervisors of the
Company, each of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company confirmed that he/she has fully complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
Year.

Senior management who, because of their office in the
Company, are likely to be in possession of inside information,
have also been requested to comply with the provisions of the
Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established four
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Strategic Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Deqgiang, two non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Zhang Jinghua and Mr. Gao Feng, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu
Chaogjian, Mr. Gao Fuping and Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo. Mr.
Zhang Degang is the chairman of the Board.

Their biographical details and their family relationships (where
applicable) are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 20
to 30 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions and whether they are independent
non-executive Directors are available on the Company’s
website.

Mr. Zhang Degang, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, is the brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua, who are the executive Director and general manager of
the Group, and the non-executive Director, respectively. Save as
disclosed, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the
Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, directors’ appointments or re-appointments,
investment policies, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive Directors
and the members of senior management. The functions and
powers that have been delegated are reviewed periodically to
ensure that they remain appropriate.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management. The Board also reviews the
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report to ensure
compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s
expense upon their request. During the Year, all Directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance
and financial position to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of directorships or other positions which they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders of the Company and have exercised their duties
with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Group. Every newly appointed Director receives an induction
to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he/she is fully
aware of his duties and responsibilities as a director under
applicable rules and requirements.

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
and to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices, the Directors participated in the
following continuous professional development in the Year:

e E R
RiESHE

EHZHHE

Reading materials
updating on new rules

EENA Name of Directors and regulations
BITES Executive Directors

oR 12 Ml 55 A Mr. Zhang Degang 7
SRIECR S Mr. Zhang Degiang v
BITES Non-executive Directors

REFELZ LT Ms. Zhang Jinghua v
= A Mr. Gao Feng Y
BIUAFBRITES Independent Non-executive Directors

ReiE S E Mr. Liu Chaojian v
CELE: RS Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo v
=ETEE Mr. Gao Fuping 7

M ARARBEETRRIBANFERREEEIZ

Note: The Company has received from each of the Directors the confirmations on
taking continuous professional training.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer are separate and are not performed by the same
individual as this ensures better checks and balances and
hence better corporate governance. Mr. Zhang Degang holds
the position of the chairman of the Board, who is primarily
responsible for the overall strategies, planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Zhang Degiang serves as the
general manager of the Group, who is primarily responsible for
the operations of the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the
overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. They serve
actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide their
independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One of
the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted an
annual confirmation in writing of his independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmations, the Company considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent and
free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of the Board Committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and Strategic
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and written
terms of reference approved by the Board covering its duties,
powers and functions. Their terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website.

5 N ERFH KR M AR 2D E WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



s g S/
ﬁ%%/ﬁ#&% CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o

FMEREESTeREeHERERNE
BRABTTERS  BERNFERRGERE
BREXALTHWER -

() BEXEET
EVZEERBLEEEATRIME
ZBERERY  H=REFHEK
DHIREBERAELECELIFNTE
F) AHEEECBLFATES)
RBEEEGERITESR) - I5HA%
FRABEEEERERREHEHLE
B EZEIRERZRESXIR -

ERZBENIZBRERHBES
ERMBHRERRS  EREELA
MEZEXRECAMMARFELR
BINEZBMBRERBLER
EEETRE URBTEEFEZ
EKMEMBENAEET ETERESE
BMASENPHRFERS -

FRN BERZECEHHNENASE
E#H 20166 308 1F /<18 A K& &
E2015F 12 AIH I FEMGE M
HREERBRAEEEAN SRR
B INEZEEATRENERE (B
PREEZBEFNEERAELER)
INEZBRIN R REEURSNE
EERERERANIBETEHE -

RAFEFHERE  BERLZESCER
HZE2016F12 A31H L FEMERE B
HIRE -

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three Directors, namely Mr. Ho Yuk
Ming, Hugo (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Liu
Chaojian (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Gao
Feng (non-executive Director). Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, relationship with
external auditor of the Group, oversee the audit process
and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by the Board. These include reviewing the Group’s interim
and annual reports.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and for the
year ended 31 December 2015, respectively, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
the report prepared by the external auditor covering major
findings in the course of the audit, the selection and
appointment of the external auditor as well as the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Audit Committee

has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Audit Committee (Continued)
During the Year, four meetings of the Audit Committee
were held. The attendance records of individual committee
members are set out below:

HEEHRRE

Attendance/

BE&HE Name of member Number of Meetings
B BREE Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 4/4
2R EE Mr. Liu Chaojian 4/4
=g A Mr. Gao Feng 4/4

HGWNREZEET
FREZZEQRELEERLT
AFTEMBELEKRY A=RE

4K DRI AREELECETIE
WITEE) = \'%E(ﬁi##ﬂﬂ
EF)NREREEGFRTES) - B

HEAERFTHNEEZREGER -

FMEEZZEENIEBERER
BEERaAEEENEEY
BEBRBRARRITESEAR
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(ii)

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was
established with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chaojian
(independent non-executive Director), Mr. Gao Fuping
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang
Degiang (executive Director). Mr. Liu Chaojian is the
chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee are to
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
structure and policy for all Directors and senior
management as well as the specific
packages for the executive Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent process for developing such
policy. No Director takes part in any discussion on his own
remuneration. The Company’s objective for its
remuneration policy is to maintain fair and competitive
packages based on business requirements and industry
practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to the members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each Director’'s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the Group’s
performance are taken into account.

review and make

remuneration

remuneration
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(ii) Remuneration and Appraisal Committee (Continued)
During the Year, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee has, inter alia, reviewed the remuneration policy
and structure relating to the Directors and senior
management of the Company.

During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee was held. The attendance records of
individual committee members are set out below:

HE EHERE

Attendance/

RE & Name of member Number of Meetings
BFHRELEE Mr. Liu Chaojian 1/1
SE=R s Mr. Gao Fuping 1/1
RIER A Mr. Zhang Degjiang 1/1

HZE2016F12 A31B I FEEIL £ 5EE
BlZloMAEE SR EEEKEH
£ 5 an T

FHENEEE ()

Remuneration bands (HK$)

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management of the Group by band for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

AE

Number of persons

Z £250,000
Nil to 250,000

250,000%2500,000
250,000 to 500,000

500,000%1,000,000
500,000 to 1,000,000
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The Nomination Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises
three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Degang (executive
Director), Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Gao Fuping (independent non-
executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the composition of the Board, including its
structure, size and diversity, at least annually to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group. It is also responsible to consider and recommend to
the Board any suitably qualified person to become a
member of the Board, monitor the succession planning of
Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become the
members of the Board, and the Board will review the Board
Diversity Policy, so as to develop and review measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and to
monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.

During the Year, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held. The attendance records of individual
committee members are set out below:

HEEiRRY

Attendance/

BE&HE Name of member Number of Meetings
aRAE M A Mr. Zhang Degang 2/2
fAIBALE Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 2/2
BB FEE Mr. Gao Fuping 2/2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iv) Strategic Committee
The Strategic Committee was established with terms of
reference and comprises three Directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Degang (executive Director), Mr. Zhang Degiang
(executive Director) and Mr. Liu Chaojian (independent
non-executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman
of the Strategic Committee.

The primary function of the Strategic Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the long-term
development strategies of the Company.

During the year, the Strategic Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the financing plans and long term development of
the Company and given suggestions accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, one meeting of
the Strategic Committee was held. The attendance records
of individual committee members are set out below:

HEEiRRY

Attendance/

BE&HE Name of member Number of Meetings

aRAE M 5 A Mr. Zhang Degang 1/1

RER A Mr. Zhang Degjiang 11

RNEHESLE Mr. Liu Chaojian 1/1
LEEAHGE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
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The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required to
hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be convened
and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice of at least
fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular Board meeting
while the notice of an extraordinary Board meeting shall be
despatched 5 days prior to the date of the meeting. The notice
shall state the time, venue and means by which the Board
meeting will be convened, and an agenda and accompanying
board papers shall be sent to all the Directors at least 3 days
before the relevant meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least half
of the total number of the Directors. A Director may attend the
Board meeting in person, or appoint another Director in writing
as his proxy to attend the Board meeting. The secretary to the
Board of the Company is responsible for preparing and keeping
the minutes of Board meetings and ensuring that such minutes
are available for inspection by any Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, six Board Meetings
were held and the attendance records are set out below:

HE E:RH
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

RIBHIEE
REBAE
REFERZLT
=t

B EL
(=P
SEFEE

Mr.
Mr.

Ms.

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Zhang Degang 6/6
Zhang Degiang 6/6
Zhang Jinghua 6/6
Gao Feng 6/6
Liu Chaojian 6/6
Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 6/6
Gao Fuping 6/6

44 FEHRNENERH BB AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



ERERBE

BREXE
HZE2016F12A31B IEFE ' AAREAR
A—AAARIRERAFRE - —XHRR

HERAER—RAERBEEBERNRE -
FrBzZzEe#%c RN2016F6A7HE 1T - B
HEREET T

ExEH

Name of director

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
convened one annual general meeting, one class meeting for
holders of H shares and one class meeting for holders of
domestic shares of the Company. All these meetings were held
on 7 June 2016 and the attendance records are set out below:

HE E@ERE
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

i Bl 522k
RAG @
RIFEL T
U 55

gle Kt
B
BEF AL

ZERERESE

RBEABERAD  EFARARAK
REFAG -EEE EHR/=F L7
EEFET - ARFICHEENEFTEN
—ERAMERF - REZBEGARKER
ERERRABERR @O EE
EARRBNERIBRE  ZRESNEE
R BUERRRFRIH Wik RIERD
BERTEZQUE - IBHRANESH
ARBERASETRILE -

BROREFELZTIERIENTESTHNRBEL
(REEHIBA20156 828R NE —fEE
EEHERKER I FEF2HARQF]
FIVRBEL FHE ELTHRRVIZA
=% -

. Zhang Degang 3/3
. Zhang Degiang 3/3

. Zhang Jinghua 3/3
. Gao Feng 3/3
. Liu Chaojian 3/3
. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 3/3
. Gao Fuping 3/3

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
subject to election at the Company’s general meetings with a
term of office of three years and may be re-elected. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures for the
appointment of new Directors. The Nomination Committee shall,
in accordance with provisions of the laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association, take into account the
practical situations of the Company, consider the selection
criteria, selection procedures and terms of office of the
Directors, and record and submit the resolutions to the Board
for approval. All newly nominated Directors are subject to
election and approval at general meetings.

relevant

Except for Ms. Zhang Jinghua’s service contract as a non-
executive Director for an appointment term commencing from
28 August 2015 and expiring upon the end of the second
session of the Board, each of the Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in March 2015.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors of the Company consists of three
members. The employee representative supervisor, namely Ms.
Yang Jinghua, was elected by employees, and the other
supervisors were elected by the shareholders of the Company.
Each of the supervisors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. The functions and duties of the board of
supervisors include, but are not limited to: reviewing and
verifying financial reports and, if in doubt, appointing certified
public accountants and practicing auditors to re-examine the
Company’s financial information; investigate when an unusual
operation situation of the Company is discontinued; supervising
the performance of the Directors and senior management
members, and monitoring whether they had acted in violation of
the laws, regulations and Articles of Association in the
performance of their duties; requesting the Directors and senior
management members to rectify actions which are detrimental
to the Company’s interests; and exercising other rights given to
them under the Articles of Association.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an
external service provider, Ms. Ho Wing Yan, who was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”). Mr. Zhang Degang, the chairman of the Board and
executive Director, is the primary corporate contact person of
the Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that the Board policies and procedures
are followed. Ms. Ho is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and should also facilitate
induction and professional development of Directors. During the
Year, the Company Secretary has complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash
flows for the Year and in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies and has
applied them consistently based on prudent and reasonable
judgments and estimates. The Board considers that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to any events or conditions that may affect
the business of the Group or cast doubts on its ability to
continue as going concern.

The responsibility of PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” in this

annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. During the Year, the fees paid or
payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of its audit
services provided to the Group was RMB1.7 million and no
non-audit services were provided.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the Year under review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure,
enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage
actively with the Company. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, the shareholder communication policy and other
relevant internal procedures of the Company, the shareholders of
the Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the Board
and the shareholders of the Company. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders through
annual general meetings and other general meetings where
the shareholders meet and exchange views with the
Board, and to exercise their right to vote at meetings. The
Company shall arrange notices of meetings and circulars
containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 45 days before the relevant
meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Enquiries to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make enquiries by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance
matters to the Board and Board Committees at the general
meetings or providing written notice of such enquiries for
the attention of the Company Secretary at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong currently
situated at 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) alone or
jointly holding 10% or more of the shares have the right to
require the Board to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting by a written request. Within ten days after
receipt of the request, the Board shall, in accordance with
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, gives a
written response in respect of whether or not it agrees to
convene a shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting.

If the Board agrees to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, a notice of shareholders’ general meeting
shall be issued within five days after the Board reaches such
a resolution. Where the notice alters the original proposal, the
approval of the relevant shareholders shall be required.

If the Board refuses to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, or fails to respond within ten days after
receipt of the request, the shareholder(s) alone or in
aggregate holding 10% or more of the Shares have the right
to propose to the board of supervisors of the Company by a
written requisition the convening of a shareholders’
extraordinary general meeting.

If the board of supervisors of the Company agrees to
convene a shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting, a
notice of shareholders’ general meeting shall be issued within
five days after receipt of the request. Where the notice alters
the original proposal, the approval of the relevant
shareholders shall be required.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
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(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings (Continued)

Failure of the board of supervisors of the Company to issue
a notice of general meeting within the stipulated period shall
be deemed as its failure to convene and preside over a
general meeting, and shareholder(s) alone or in aggregate
holding 10% or more of the Company’s Shares for ninety
consecutive days or more shall be entitled to convene and
preside over the meeting.

The shareholders require to convene an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting shall follow the following
procedures:

(@) Shareholders who separately or jointly hold 10% or
more of the shares of the Company carrying voting
rights may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by
signing a written request or several copies in the
same form and to illustrate the proposed resolutions
of the meetings. The Board shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting as
soon as practicable upon receipt of the foresaid
written request. The aforesaid amount of
shareholding is calculated as of the date of the
submission of the written request by the
Shareholders.

(b) A Shareholder’s general meeting shall be convened in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

All reasonable expenses incurred by convening and
holding the aforesaid meeting by shareholders due to the
failure of the Board to hold such meeting in response to
the aforesaid request shall be borne by the Company.
Such expenses shall be deducted from the amounts due
by the Company to the Director(s) who have defaulted their
duties.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(iv) Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting
In overseeing and monitoring the business operation of the
Company, the shareholders of the Company have the right
to put forward proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders
individually or together holding 3% or more of the
Company’s voting shares have the right to put up ad hoc
proposals in writing to the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong currently situated at 33rd Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the
Company shall include such ad hoc proposals into the
agenda for such general meeting if they are the matters
which fall within the functions and powers of general
meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be within
the scope of duties of the general meetings. It shall have
a clear topic and specific matters to be resolved on, and
shall be in compliance with relevant requirements of the
laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of
Association.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In 2016, certain amendments were made to the Articles of
Association to reflect the transfer of 960,000 domestic shares of
the Company from Shaanxi Xinjian Industrial Development
Company Limited to Shaanxi Renten Investment Management
Company Limited. These amendments were duly passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 7 June 2016. For details of the
amendments to the Articles of Association, please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 29 March
2016 and 20 April 2016 respectively. Save as disclosed above,
there was no change in the Articles of Association during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions
on risk management and internal control as set out in the CG
Code. The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems for the Group. The systems are designed to manage
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year-end review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted annually and the
systems are considered to be effective and adequate. The
Company also has an internal audit function to carry out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to
keep information confidential and manage actual or potential
conflicts of interest. Stringent internal structures have been
designed to prevent the misuse of inside information and avoid
conflicts of interest.
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The Group is committed to promoting sustainable development,
which is extremely important to create long-term value for the
Group’s shareholders, clients, employees, other stakeholders, as
well as general public. The Company cares about the impact of
its daily operation on environment and society and strives to set
a good example for the public; hence in conducting business
operation, it also makes great effort to meet the interests of all
stakeholders, economy, environment, society and corporate
governance and strives to achieve a fine balance.

ENVIRONMENT

A1. Policy on emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharging pollution through water and land,
producing hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
Protecting environment is one of our key concerns; we are
committed to protecting environment and focusing on
environmental protection in our operation, hoping through
close supervision and stringent control to reduce our long-
term negative impact on environment.

1. Energy Management

The indirect greenhouse gas emission, which
generated from our daily electricity power
consumption, is the main source of the Group’s
carbon footprint, we will keep monitoring and
disclosing the Company’s carbon footprint to find out
and control the impact of our daily operation on the
environment. At the same time, we will implement the
following energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures at various office locations to reduce
greenhouse gas emission:

a. Install high-performance electrical equipments;

b.  Purchasing department is required to purchase
energy-efficient products;

c.  Employ automatic lighting control system;

ZZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016



i%iﬁ > ?‘j:g&%;él\iﬁ%: ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIg )

Al FHABERRBERBHER  @KE
THnHs AERBEERYH
EAFHBERE

1. BEREE#)

d.

W ANBERALEDRER

B T BE G 4 A RARR B L
MTABERFEREESE A
LR BE TR AR 2 N T 44
ENERRE:

MABERRMEZAA

REBEEEEAE R
3t 5 B & B OB 8
i -

RBE2017F1 AR 218 2 Bt
HEE - AEEHHEHFIATF
WEREHERER  HEEER
BRI @ MERRE ((IRE -
HEREGREDTHE -

ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Al.

Policy on emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharging pollution through water and land,
producing hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
(Continued)

1. Energy Management (Continued)

d. Deploy LED lighting on office floors;

e. The employees must turn off the light and any
unnecessary energy device to reduce energy
consumption and avoid unnecessary waste of
energy;

f. Deploy natural light as much as possible on office
floors;

g. Install auxiliary electricity meter to monitor
electricity consumption; and

h. Other energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures.

Our finance department should collect information
about usage of electricity annually for the
management to disclose in the Environmental, Social
and Governance report (the “ESG report”) in the
financial year starting from 1 January 2017 or later.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A1l.

Policy on emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharging pollution through water and land,
producing hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
(Continued)

2.

Waste Management

In order to lighten the load of landfills, we adopt a
responsible waste management policy, including
waste avoidance, reducing waste from its source and
reuse, recycle and responsible disposal of waste. Our
offices should post memos and notices at
conspicuous places, encouraging the employees to
reduce the production of wastes. We have introduced
waste separation measures from the start:

a. Waste paper (excluding paper cup, paper plate,
etc.);

b.  Metal (aluminum can and other metal cans);

c. Plastics (plastic bottle, container and packaging
materials); and

d. Other recyclables (such as old cloth, electrical
appliance, computer, magazine, etc.).

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with the
PRC Environmental Protection Law (4 A B A1
IRIB{R#EE), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution (FF A R H A E K55
FBHY87K), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution (FF % A B #£FE X
RIGRIEE) and the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise
Pollution (% A R HFBIR TR E 5 F08)%) and
other relevant laws and regulation on environmental
protection in all material respects.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A2. Policy on effective use of resources (including energy,
water and other raw materials)

1.

Reducing electricity consumption

We will comply with the Group’s policy on emission of
exhaust gas and greenhouse gas, discharging
pollution through water and land, producing
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes to reduce
electricity consumption.

Paper reduction

In order to reduce waste paper, we have developed
the following measures:

a. Deploy recycling bins to collect used paper
products such as waste papers, posters, letters
and envelopes;

b. Place waste paper recycling bins next to printers
for setting aside waste papers from papers that
have been printed only one-sided and can be
reused;

c.  Saving papers by double-sided printing;
d.  Writing on both sides of papers;

e. Bring your own cup and avoid using paper cup;

f. Reuse stationeries such as file folders and
envelopes;

g. Reuse packaging boxes; and

h. Other than the waste papers that contain
confidential information, waste papers should be
shipped to paper mill or scrap paper company
SO as to be recycled into new paper.

Each year, our finance department shall collect
information about the paper products the Company
purchased and the waste papers that shipped to
scrap paper company or paper mill for the
management to disclose in the ESG report in the
financial year starting from January 1, 2017 or later.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A2. Policy on effective use of resources (including energy,
water and other raw materials) (Continued)

3.

Water conservation

In Hong Kong and the PRC, fresh water is a precious
resource. We should economize water, try to protect
water resource, and for which we have developed the
following measures:

a. Repair dripping faucet or hose in a timely
manner;

b.  Adopt effective water-saving production methods
and instruments;

c.  Check water consumption regularly; and

d.  Minimize water pressure.

Green procurement

Green procurement is based on reducing
environmental load. Quality, cost, delivery time are the
main focuses when the Group procures goods or
chooses supplier, but on top of that, we give priority
to environmental friendly and energy-saving products.

We adopt the following measures:

a. Give priority to energy-efficient products at the
highest level;

b.  Give priority to effective water-saving products;

c. We require the suppliers to reduce packaging

material; and

d. Send the message to suppliers that we value
environmental protection, energy saving.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A3. Policy on minimizing the Group’s significant impact
on environment and natural resources
The Group manages and minimizes the impact it may
cause to environment, directly or indirectly, through the
following methods:

1. Make sure its business operation comply with the
environmental laws in Hong Kong and its operating
locations including the PRGC;

2. Establish and improve environmental protection
mechanism to ensure that its operation does not
pollute water and land;

3. Monitor gas emission and use of resources, establish
emission reduction target;

4.  Make sure that in our daily business operation, with
all efforts, we conserve energy, water and other raw
materials to reduce direct impact on environment;

5. Whenever the Company holds banquet, shark fin is
out of question and sustainable seafood should be
served. Order reasonable quantity and reduce waste;

6. Urge the employees to reduce paper usage and adopt
other energy-saving measures; and

7. Cooperate with government agencies and support
environmental organizations’ activities.
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SOCIETY

Employment and Labor convention

Employee is an important asset of the Company, we care about
their well-being, respect their personal traits, make sure that all
employees are subject to legislative protection and have equal
opportunity in their career path, also, we strive to increase their
sense of belonging to the Group.

B1. Policy on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, day off, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits
1. Salary

We offer competitive pay and benefits to the
employees according to their job requirements and
individual performance. We will annually review the
overall salary and benefits to ensure the Company’s
competitiveness in local market, and we will also refer
to the relevant industries and similar organizations.
Each year, Key Performance Indicators will provide
direction and guidance to the employees’ individual
work plan. We also assess the achievements and
contributions of the employees to appraise and
reward them.

2. Dismissal

We ensure that all employees are under the
applicable employment laws, including:

a. Whenever an employee offers to resign or being
laid off, human resources department should
interview him or her before quitting to find out
the reason of quitting;

b. It is required to issue employment verification
document to the dismissed employee;

c. When the employer terminates employment
contract, the dismissed employee shall be given
due notice or wages in lieu of notice, and the
notice should not be given during his or her
annual leave and maternity leave;
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SOCIETY (Continued)

B1.

Policy on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, day off, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits (Continued)

2. Dismissal (Continued)

d.

An employee cannot be dismissed when she has
been confirmed pregnant or given notice of
pregnancy;

An employee cannot be dismissed when he or
she takes a paid sick leave;

An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her giving evidence or information in any legal
proceeding relating to enforcement of labor laws,
industrial accident or breach of work safety
regulation;

An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her joining labor union or participating in labor
union activities; and

If an employee is if a
compensation agreement has not yet been
reached or the relevant evaluation certificate has
not yet been issued, the employee cannot be
dismissed.

injured on duty,
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SOCIETY (Continued)

B1.

Policy on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, day off, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits (Continued)

3.

Recruitment and promotion

In the Group, recruitment and promotion should be
fair and open for all employees, and cannot be
affected by age, sex, physical or mental health status,
marital status, family status, race, skin colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation, sexual
orientation and other factors, the employees will be
recognized and rewarded by their contribution, work
performance and skills, the Company will do its best
to provide them with good working environment and
development opportunity.

Working hours and day-off
The employees shall enjoy deserved days-off under
the applicable laws and regulations.

Employees are entitled to enjoy the following days-off:

a. Each employee can take a day off in every 7
days;

b.  Statutory holidays;

c. Paid annual leave prescribed by employment
contract;

d. Sick leave;

e. Marriage leave;

f. Maternity leave; and

g. Paternity leave.
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SOCIETY (Continued)

B1. Policy on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,

working hours, day off, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits (Continued)

5.

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits

Equal opportunity must be provided on recruitment,
training, promotion, transfer, remuneration, benefits
and termination of contract. Such opportunities shall
not be affected by factors such as age, gender,
physical or mental health status, marital status, family
status, race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political
affiliation and sexual orientation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC (% A & LA E 4
&) & [F)%) and other relevant laws and regulation on
employment in all material respects.
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the employees from occupational hazards

We are committed to protecting the health and safety of
the employees and the community, we require all
employees to comply with all relevant occupational health
and safety regulations, and do our utmost to provide them
with safe and healthy working environment. As a result, we
have implemented the following measures:

1. Develop internal guidelines to ensure that office and
factories are in line with or higher than the

requirements of relevant laws;

2. Establish safety procedures for the recognized
dangerous work;

3. Provide necessary protective equipment and medical
insurance to the employees;

4.  Ensure that office and working environment is healthy
and safe, regularly check machinery and equipment;

5. Establish emergency measures such as fire or
explosion emergency plan;

6. Regularly arrange rescue, fire and evacuation drills;

7. Establish mechanism to record industrial injury and

analyze the cause;

8. Provide and maintain an environmental-friendly, healthy
and safe working condition;
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SOCIETY (Continued)

B2.

B3.

Policy on safe working environment and safeguarding

the employees from occupational hazards (Continued)

9.  Drinking is not allowed during the working hours unless
prior approval,

10. Actively promote environmental protection, health and
safety awareness of the employees, and support
development of environmental protection, health and
safety in the industry;

11.  Provide all employees with job information, guidance,
training and supervision as required; and

12.  Provide smoke-free working environment.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC (FFEE A R A MEH &R B %)
and other relevant laws and regulation on health and
safety of employees in all material respects.

Policy on improving the employees’ knowledge and
skills to perform their responsibilities

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. We understand that the employees’
knowledge and skills are essential to the Company’s
operation and business growth. Good development plan
lays a good foundation for the employees to face business
challenge in the future, and it also helps them to grasp
promotion opportunities, fulfill their career aspirations. We
provide the employees with effective training and develop
a clear promotion ladder, ensuring that the employees
have the required skills; we also nurture outstanding
successors for the Group’s and breed academic
atmosphere. The Group conducts performance evaluation
annually, and based on the assessment result to provide
the staff with appropriate training, and offer job,
development and promotion opportunities for outstanding
employees. Under the Group’s Human Resource
Management System requirements, manager of our human
resources department (“HR”) is responsible for carrying out
related assessment and training.
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B4. Policy on preventing child labor or forced labor
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The Group firmly adopts a zero-tolerance policy on child
labor and forced labor, such conduct is prohibited by
international standard and relevant domestic legislation and
shall never be tolerated in here. In any part of the
business process (including our subcontractors or
suppliers), child labor or forced labor is not allowed and
we see child labor or forced labor as a serious crime. The
following is the policy on preventing child labor or forced
labor:

1. Child labor refers to employment of people under 16
years of age, if any country or region in which the
Company or its subsidiary operates has a more
stringent definition of child labor, such definition shall
prevail;

2. Forced labor refers to people providing labor or service
against their will and under the threat of punishment;

3.  The hired employees must be at least 16 years of age,
the Group shall never recruit child labor and forced
labor, and if it knows child labor or forced labor
exists in its suppliers or subcontractors, the Group
will not conduct business with them anymore;

4. The employees under 18 may not engage in any
possible hazardous work and are prohibited to work
at night, because it might affect their education;

5. Before hiring any job applicant, HR should take
effective procedures to verify their age. HR should
check documents that prove the age of the applicant,
including government-issued photo identification and
birth certificate, driver’s license, household register,
academic certificates or any other credentials that
prove the date of birth. HR must ensure that the
applicant’s looks is consistent with the photograph on
the ID card;
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SOCIETY (Continued)
B4. Policy on preventing child labor or forced labor

(Continued)

6.

HR should carry out prevention training about child
labor and forced labor, especially those responsible
for recruitment;

If employment of child labor under the legal minimum
age is found in the Group, we will see to the best
interests of the child, and take the following measures
in line with relevant legislations:

a. Take the child away from workplace immediately,
and to ensure the safety of the child;

b.  Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to
verify all relevant information, confirm whether
the child under 16 years of age, sever labor
relations with the child, notify the local social
welfare institution, and take remedial measures
to protect the child’s best interest;

c. Send the child to a special occupational health
labor inspection institution to do medical check-
up as it is required to confirm the child’s
physical and mental health, and conduct
investigation to fully understand the child’s
situation;

d.  When the child reaches legal minimum age for
employment, we will provide the child with re-
employment opportunity; and

e. Immediately find out the problems exist in the
hiring process of the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90 working days.
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SOCIETY (Continued)
B4. Policy on preventing child labor or forced labor
(Continued)
8. If forced labor is found in the Group, we will take the
following measures in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant legislation:

a. Take the labor away from workplace immediately,
ensure the safety of the labor;

b. Immediately notify the person in charge of our
human resources department to verify all
relevant information, confirm whether the person
is subject to compulsory labor;

c. Send the labor to a special occupational health
labor inspection institution to do medical check-
up, it is required to confirm the labor’s physical
and mental health, and conduct investigation to
fully understand the labor’s situation; and

d. Immediately find out the problems exist in the
hiring process of the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90 working days.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China (F 2 A F2 05 4%
&)%) and Labour Contract Law of the PRC (F1# A R A1
Bl 4 &) & A %) and other relevant laws and regulation on
employment in all material respects.
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ZEEB
B5. EE S IRE R T E M BR

OPERATING PRACTICE

B5. Policy on controlling environmental and social risks
in supply chain
We attach importance to developing and maintaining long-
term relationships with our suppliers, looking forward to
forming long-term partnerships with them. We will take a
fair and open principle on procurement of materials and
services. We will only cooperate with the suppliers that
share common moral values and standards with us. The
Group also supports and encourages the suppliers to

BMEREHERZRE L HFEMD
MERERAERFER - HME
PAR S Ko 2 B A TR B BR B8 0 6 e R
%o RMREEAGHRRAERERE
RIEENHERAE  AKETX
R BHERIRESERERME
BREARBIHELEEE:

BRPREARFRLAFARRA
ZHFE - WABEREREM
EELARBERMERRE
A%

promote efficient use of resources and environmental
protection and fulfill corporate social responsibility:

1.

We advocate the principle of fair and open competition,
and based on mutual trust, we develop and maintain
long-term relationships with the suppliers and
contractors;

BPABRERBRELEKEY 2. We have strict ethical standards in procurement of
B R R - R BRI M Z materials and services to ensure the quality of the
B R#EREFP #HEBEA finished products and maintain the continued
RUARER —BHIAKRBED confidence of the clients, suppliers and general
public;
BPEHEEHETES  BE 3. We review our suppliers, assess them based on price,
B mE cEERFTEE quality, suitability and demands, only those being
Bt - REFERAERATH rated as qualified are our approved suppliers. We only
RABRMARAHER - B purchase from the approved suppliers;
R R Al e 5K
TE RS FE R T T IR AT M4 4. We conduct follow-up assessment on the suppliers
REVERBAE=FTHBET and, if necessary, review them through a third party
Bz BERREERBEIFS organization. When a supplier is found to be
RAIZBERBEHNERE - & inconsistent with the Company’s policy or contractual
AERIFAENABIEERIBR requirements, the Company will cease future
BT E cooperation until the situation has been improved;
HZMe A EHEESE - B 5. In an unprejudiced way, we choose appropriate,
N BaETZHER: responsible and capable suppliers;
RSBt ERNEERR 6. Support and encourage the suppliers to improve their
EmkRE URHEEITREF environmental products and services, and their
RAREE : employees’ benefits and protection;
HEPVEETEBRERE & 7. The suppliers must comply with the relevant laws,
PIREHNERE: R regulations and contractual obligations; and
BRRAERZERRBFLE 8. We shall adopt effective monitoring and management

BEE  BERIERERA
TBREREARA  MEFE
AN EETR -

systems to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other
misconducts in procurement and bidding processes.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)

B6. Policy on health, safety, advertising, labeling, privacy
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and remedies of the products and services

Health and safety of products and services

We are committed to providing the customers with high
quality products and services and settling customer
complaints effectively, continuously improving service level
and ensuring customer satisfaction. Accordingly, the
following measures are taken:

1. Make sure that the products and services comply with
related laws and guidelines;

2. Provide the customers with accurate product
information and high-quality products, and develop
return policy and after-sale service for related
products;

3. If there is a problem with a product, we will take the
initiative to explain the problem and find a mutually
satisfactory solution for the customers; and

4.  After handling a customer’s complaint, proper records
should be kept, and the relevant department shall
review the complaint and develop measures to
prevent the recurrence of similar complaints, so that
the Group’s service quality keeps improving.

Advertising, labeling and protection of customer
information

Customer information will only be used for business
purpose, not for other unrelated purposes. All employees
should handle and use customer information with extreme
caution, protect customer information, and comply with
statutory requirements in privacy law.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with the Safe
Production Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF % A
RAEMBE L 24 EJL) and other relevant laws and
regulation on health and safety of products and services in
all material respects.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)

B7. Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and

B3R
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money laundering

Ethics and integrity is the cornerstone of the Company’s
success. We adopt a zero tolerance approach to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. In their daily work,
the Directors, management and staff must comply with
related national and local government laws and regulations
on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. All employees not only have responsibility to
understand and comply with the above regulations, but
also have obligation to report violation to the appropriate
person. Any person, who contravenes the regulations, will
be subject to disciplinary sanction. We will make every
effort to protect the informer and the received information.
However, if an informer’s intention is to harm others, they
may be subject to disciplinary punishment.

1. Soliciting or accepting benefit

Any employee (including the Directors, management
and all full-time, part-time, hourly, temporary workers)
of the Group cannot directly, indirectly, or in any
form, solicit or accept any form of benefits or do
anything that might be seen as bribe from a third
party, including, but not limited to, money, gift,
excessive entertainment and hospitality, subsidized
travel and accommodation, loan, pledging as
guarantor, extending preferential credit terms, fee,
reward, position, employment, contract, service,
privilege, exemption of all or part of the
responsibilities that ought to be fulfilled. The
employees should reject any direct or indirect
interests and benefits relating to the Group’s
business, should such benefits being accepted, their
objective attitude would be hampered, or the interests
of the Group would be harmed or invaded, or
causing bias or misconduct.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)

B7. Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

1.

Soliciting or accepting benefit (Continued)

In social events such as festivals, activities,
entertainments and other daily routine, refusing to
accept a modest gift may be considered impolite or
lack of social grace, with that in mind, under the
following principles, the employees may consider
accepting benefits on a voluntary basis:

a. Receiving related benefits will not affect
performance and decision of the employee;
not feel

b. The employee will the need to

reciprocate; and
c.  The employee can openly discuss the benefits.
If the Company finds out any employee’s
inappropriate behavior of soliciting or accepting

benefits, it will call the police and terminate labor
relations with the employee.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)

B7. Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering (Continued)

2.

Providing benefits

In any case, any employee shall not provide bribe or
improper benefits to any person or organization in
order to seek personal gain or group interests. If the
Company finds out any employee conducting bribery,
it will call the police and terminate labor relations with
the employee.

Extortion

Any person who seeks for the benefits of his own or
another person, or with intent to cause loss to
another person, and makes any unwarranted demand
by extortion, such conduct shall be considered as
extortion. All employees shall not participate in, assist,
cover up any kind of extortion. If the Company finds
out any employee conducting extortion, it will call the
police and terminate
employee.

labor relations with the

Fraud

Any person, who uses any means of deception to
benefit himself or another person, or with intent to
cause loss to another person, such conduct shall be
considered fraud. Common employee fraud includes
embezzlement, wage fraud and stealing company
assets. All employees shall not participate in, assist,
cover up any fraud. If the Company finds out any
employee conducting fraud, it will call the police and
terminate labor relations with the employee.

Money Laundering

Money laundering refers to an individual or institution
attempts to conceal the source of illicit money, or
makes such money looks legitimate in any way. The
Company will not tolerate any employee’s conduct,
support, and assistance in any form of money
laundering.
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EEEB ) OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)

B7. BHLLBERR - 1% MREERAKREN B7. Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
B3R (8) money laundering (Continued)
5 HAEHE 5.  Money Laundering (Continued)
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The Company should establish an anti-money
laundering team. General manager should be the
team leader and responsible for organizing the anti-
money laundering team. The team’s main
responsibilities include organizing, implementing anti-
money laundering tasks, investigating reported money
laundering, arranging anti-money laundering training,
working with regulatory and judiciary authorities to
investigate suspicious transactions of funds, as well
as paying attention to requirements and updates in
anti-money laundering laws and regulations.

Anti-money laundering procedures include identifying
clients, keeping transaction records, reporting and
following-up investigation of suspicious transactions,
and anti-money laundering training.

a. Identifying clients

In dealing with new clients, sales people must
establish a high degree of awareness of anti-
money laundering, through communication with
prospective clients to comprehensively grasp the
clients’ information, running the first check on
the clients. After successful client acquisition,
regular contact is required to grasp the clients’
updates. If an abnormal situation occurs, the
sales person needs to timely communicate with
the relevant departments.

b.  Keeping transaction record

Sales people and accounting personnel should
keep customer identification information,
including register customer identification and
related information, keep all sorts of records and
information reflecting payment authority’s
customer identification process, and keep
transaction records such as each transaction’s
information, business voucher, ledger and
documents to reflect the details of each
transaction and other relevant information to
ensure that each transaction is traceable.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)

B7. Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

5.

Money Laundering (Continued)

C.

Reporting and follow-up investigating of
suspicious transaction

For sales people and accounting staff, should
they find out a suspicious transaction, they
would need to report it immediately to the
corporate headquarters’ anti-money laundering
team. The team analyzes and investigates all
suspicious transactions reported, and if there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the
transaction or the customer has ties with money
laundering, terrorism and other criminal
activities, relevant authorities including the
HKSAR Government JFIU should be notified.

Anti money laundering training

All employees should join in anti-money
laundering training at least once a vyear, the
training includes learning the danger of money
laundering, anti-money laundering regulations,
the role of the employees in anti-money
laundering, how to identify suspicious
transactions, ways to report suspicious
transactions, the consequences if one fails to
comply with anti-money laundering regulations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied the
Anti-money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China (% A R XM EH K % %),
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China (% A R £ F B Al%), Countering Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China (F#EA R EMBE R IEE#HFFE) and other
relevant laws and regulation on bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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COMMUNITY

B8. Policy on finding out the needs of the community, at

which the Group operates, by means of community
involvement, and ensuring that its business activities
will take into account the interests of the
community

For the Group’s long-term development, community
participation is important, we are committed to promoting
development and construction activities of the community,
at which we operate. We benefit the community through a
variety of actions, such as investment, contributing money,
time, products, services, management

knowledge and other resources.

influence,

We participate in community building through three main
ways:

1. Organize, facilitate and support the staff to take part
in volunteer services, such as regularly visiting people
who need help,
disadvantaged groups, holding Blood Donation Day.

arranging outdoor activities for

2. By means of donation, we donate money, goods or

services, directly supporting or funding projects of
service agencies. In addition to
donation itself, we also appeal to the Company’s
stakeholders (including the employees and customers)
to donate.

various social

3. We endeavor to provide employment opportunities for
the disadvantaged and create a win-win situation. The
Group is willing to hire the disabled people who have
completed retraining courses, and give priority to
purchasing from the suppliers who hired the disabled
people, or participate in a variety of mentorship
programs.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the PRC and has its
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 33rd Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Group’s
registered office and its principal place of business in the PRC
as situated at 1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are research and
development, design, manufacture, equipment supply,
installation, testing, repair and maintenance of production lines
for manufacturing steel wire products in the PRC. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
section of Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual
report and the paragraphs below.

The Group complies with the requirements under the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) for the disclosure of
information and corporate governance. No important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the financial
year to the date of this annual report.
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KEY RISK FACTORS

Set out below are the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension
of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and
markets as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of
such changes.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in
some parts of its business to improve performance and
efficiency of the Group. While gaining the benefits from external
service providers, the management
operational dependency may pose a threat of vulnerability to
unexpected poor or lapses in service including
damage, business disruption and monetary losses. To address
such uncertainties, the Group engages only reputable third-
party service providers and closely monitors their performance.

realises that such

reputation

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer
to the prospectus of the Company dated 30 October 2014.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual
needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all
employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace

accidents are found in the Year.

The Group places great emphasis on working relationships with
suppliers to meet our customers’ needs in an effective and
efficient manner. Our departments work closely with our
suppliers to make sure the tendering and procurement process
is conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s
requirements and standards are also well-communicated to
suppliers before the commencement of a project.
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The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analyze on customer feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only
quality products and services are offered to the customers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, aggregate sales to
the Group’s largest and five largest customers accounted for
22.4% (2015: 30.2%) and 76.3% (2015: 78.8%), respectively, of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers accounted
for 10.3% (2015: 7.2%) and 37.4% (2015: 29.2%), respectively, of
the Group’s total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
of the Company (who or which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any interest in the group’s five largest customers, raw
material suppliers and subcontractors during the Year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 172
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 98 to 171 of this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the
Year and material factors underlying its results and financial
position are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

78 FEHRNENERH BB AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



EEZ WY REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

i s B ol 93 ik (ot 4
BEBAARAFARBEESNFBIHRELE
AR R KT TEIS ©

R2016F12 A31H » ANA B AJ 5k % 18
%4 B A R #425,000,0007T (20155 : A B
#426,400,0007T) ©

k2

HE2016F12A3HLFE  EECES
&3 R EA AR B8k A R¥0.057T (FLAT) -
AHARK6408 T (BiAD) - A|BAFAR
AR R R2017F6 AR (EH R ) 817
ZEERFBEFAE (RRBFXE)) i
KR HAEE - WRIRRBFAE LB
AR - B AE20174E6 5208 (28 —)
AN F A% B A i D Y IR B R B R HA AR
B o BNARRIAERIBFEAZIREEIN
ARES  MENARRHBRIFEAZ
RBEAB TN - HIR Z R BIREZF
BETEMAMEMN - BB 2F AT 8 H
RARXRBE A201754821H 2B K o

i IH s R (H AR B 3R)

EREERE

1B ¥ 52008 F1 A1H B TR B > %
PSR E ) B8 H B B 16 01 DA I H 4tb A B 3R
TE AN R A A SR AR B H R A% 3R 4 it
FHIEE R ¥ A% K 2 3 f2016F
KEARR BB - BIE10%M B RN EAT
S8 - EAUERARRERE - BIEUSE
BHRREE(RBA)BRAR - HtbRE
A ZREA REMASKEEREERL
MHERBR D E RS AIEERPERFA
BFoRm WARMEERSEH -

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the distributable reserves of the
Company were RMB425.0 million (2015: RMB426.4 million).

DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has
proposed a final dividend of RMBO0.05 per share (before tax)
totalling RMB6.4 million (before tax), subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 9 June 2017 (the
“AGM”). The final dividend, if approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the AGM, will be paid to the shareholders of
the Company whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 20 June 2017. Dividends
payable to the holders of the Company’s domestic shares shall
be paid in RMB, whereas dividends payable to the holders of
the Company’s H shares shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars.
Dividends on H share are also subject to PRC Withholding
Income Tax. Detailed plan of distribution is set out in the
circular of the Company dated 21 April 2017.

TAX REDUCTION AND EXEMPTION (FOR H
SHAREHOLDERS)

Non-resident enterprise shareholders

Pursuant to the enterprise income tax law of the PRC and its
implementation rules, which came into force on 1 January 2008
and other relevant rules, where the Company distributes the
proposed 2016 final dividend to non-resident enterprise
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
for H Shares of the Company, it is required to withhold
enterprise income tax at the rate of 10%. Any H Shares
registered in the name of non-individual registered shareholders,
including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or
other organizations or groups, will be treated as Shares being
held by non-resident enterprise shareholders, and consequently
will be subject to the withholding of the enterprise income tax.
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Non-resident individual shareholders

According to regulations by the state administration of taxation
(Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) and relevant laws and
regulations, if the individual H Share shareholders are residents
of Hong Kong or Macau or those countries which have entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of
10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of these Shareholders.
If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will make applications on their behalf to seek entitlement of the
relevant agreed preferential treatments pursuant to the relevant
tax treaty. If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of
those countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less
than 20%, the Company will withhold and pay individual income
tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty. If
the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20%, or those countries which
have not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or under
any other circumstances, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of these
shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 10 May 2017 to Friday, 9 June 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. The holders of shares whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 9 June 2017
will be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM and the class
meetings of the Company for the holders of H shares and
domestic shares of the Company to be held on Friday, 9 June
2017 (the “Class Meetings”). In order to be qualified to attend
and vote at the AGM and the Class Meetings, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the H Share Registrar of the Company, Union
Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong (in
respect of H shares), or to the Company’s registered office in
the PRC at 1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC (in respect of
Domestic shares) no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 9 May
2017.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 15 June 2017 to Tuesday, 20 June 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be qualified for receiving the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the H Share Registrar of the Company, Union
Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F.,, Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong (in
respect of H shares), or to the Company’s registered office in
the PRC at 1 Yanxin Road East,
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC (in respect of
Domestic shares) no later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 14
June 2017.

Huishan Economic

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no bank borrowings
(2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float under the Listing Rules for the Year and
up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the
PRC, the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights
requiring it to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in
proportion to their shareholdings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The following table sets forth information concerning the
Directors and supervisors of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2016.

%z F# B EZEB0HY
Name Age Position Appointment Date
BS

Directors

oK {2 Ml 5 4 44 HTEERTIRE 2012 7H24H
Mr. ZHANG Degang Executive Director and Chairman 24 July 2012
RIERELE 47 HITESREKE 20124 7H24H
Mr. ZHANG Degiang Executive Director and general manager 24 July 2012
REFELL 54 FRTES 20154 8728H
Ms. ZHANG Jinghua Non-executive Director 28 August 2015
=& % E 49 EHTES 20126 7H24H
Mr. GAO Feng Non-executive Director 24 July 2012
APELaE 51 BUFHNTES 2012 7H24H
Mr. LIU Chaojian Independent non-executive Director 24 July 2012
BEFRE 53 BUFHTES 20136 8A11H
Mr. GAO Fuping Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
(OF=L P 45 BUFHNTES 2013F8A11H
Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
ZmbltsE 53 EE 201458 H15H
Mr. PENG Jiashan Supervisor 15 August 2014
BERL 47 ES 201458 A15H
Ms. WEI Yi Supervisor 15 August 2014
GRELL 35 EERATNEB LR 20126 7H24H

Ms. YANG Jinghua Supervisor and personnel and general affairs manager 24 July 2012

AARCERERBIFRNTESTRE L
MHRAESBERREFLERLNFE

BRE URREBBUINTESRT
BYNARTA °

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 20 to 30 of
this annual report.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTOR(S)

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
information on Director for the year ended 31 December 2016 is
as follows:

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of King Force Group Holdings Limited (a
company the shares of which listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 8315) since 19 September 2016.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Except Ms. Zhang Jinghua’s service contract for an
appointment term commencing on 28 August 2015 and expiring
upon the end of the second session of the Board, each of the
Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 24 October 2014 and 20
October 2014, respectively. Each of their service contracts is for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or supervisors
of the Company has or is proposed to have a service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by
any member of the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors of
the Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid employees
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the year ended 31
December 2016.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such indemnity provisions for the benefit
of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the Year.

DONATIONS
No donation was made during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which will have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, will be as follows:

(i) Interests of the Directors in the shares of the

Company
EHEMERN HEBRTRAE
RARIHEL BENEY
ERAYALED ERAYALED
Approximate Approximate
percentage in percentage in
B &E the relevant the total
EENE B 3 E 5l Number of ke class of share issued share
Name of Director Class of shares shares Nature of interest capital®te ! capital®te !
SR AWk A W& Bk 43,221,504 EREAA 45.02% 33.77%
Mr. Zhang Degang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
W& Bk 34,010,496 BHE A A T HFRE R0 35.43% 26.57%
Domestic Shares Interest held jointly with another
person Mo 2
W& Bk 4,416,000 R R A B ) e 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled
corporation Nete 3
REEEE W& ik 29,983,104 ERBAA 31.23% 23.42%
Mr. Zhang Degiang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NE ik 47,248,896 BE M AT HF AR RN 49.22% 36.91%
Domestic Shares Interest held jointly with another
person (Note 2)
W& Bk 4,416,000 PR A B ) g 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled
corporation Mt 3
W& Bk 4,027,392 EnEAA 4.20% 3.15%
Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
REELT W& Bk 77,620,608 HE M AT HRARE R RN 80.85% 60.64%

Ms. Zhang Jinghua

Domestic Shares

Interest held jointly with another
person Nete 2)

=
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(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 128,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2016, which was
comprised of 96,000,000 domestic shares and 32,000,000 H shares.

2 Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua are
persons acting in concert and accordingly each of them is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by each other. By the Acting in
Concert Agreement dated 26 July 2013, each of Mr. Zhang Degang,
Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua confirmed that they have
exercised their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and/or
directors of the members of the Group in unanimity since the
establishment of Sanzhi Gongkong on 17 April 2009, and will continue
to do so.

3) Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang are two of the general
partners of MEHIEFRIEECZE(BRAER) (Wuxi Shunxin Investment
Enterprise (Limited Partnership)®) (“Shunxin”) and are therefore deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Shunxin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2016, no
persons or corporations (other then the Directors, chief
executive or supervisors of the Company) had or deemed or
taken to have an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was
a party, and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with any of them had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, there had been no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor any contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries. None of the shareholders of the Company entered
into any arrangement to waive or agree to waive any dividend.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the
Company and their respective close associates had any
business or interest that competes or may compete with the
business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor had any
other conflicts of interest with the Group during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua (the controlling shareholders (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) of the Company) has given an annual declaration
to the Company confirming that he/she has complied with the
non-compete undertakings given by them to the Company
under the deed of non-competition made on 11 March 2014 in
favour of the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and
enforcement of the non-compete undertakings and confirmed
that all the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or supervisors of the Company, or were such rights exercised
by them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.

88 FEHRNENERH BB AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



EEg

EFEEERTA

RER - ARRE 8T LR B 51457
FEEERTREOZEETRME -

FEALRS
FAREALRZZHBRARN G MK
WERM 32 - MAFEXHTER LW
ARELBERGHIFBRERS o

ARBERECETRIEEREEME
ES

SEA N ETRANBERE

Ol
VI

FAREEMIIEBRARANBER
FRFERERH

B XE#ERL
HE2016F12A31B L FE AR AW &
EFEMEANFLRIIE  MBESA
A ARENETAEAERRENE
AFAHER °

:l:
¥R 4% REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company complied with all code provisions of the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions during the Year are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and these
transactions do not fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Listing
Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction(s) or continuing connected transaction(s) of the
Company during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company was not
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance
and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.

ZZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016

89



§$§$&% REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BEZESE
EEeERZECHEREDEHNASE
M est RAIRES YEN®ET
e RRBEERASEIZERLS - MEHER
&5 BERASEEHE2016F12A3181E
FENGEMBESE -

¥ BB
HZE2016F 12 A31H L FEMERE B 1R
REHBEERKBEGHMEBLAEZ  H
HREVTRFEEERBEESERE - &
BREBFRAELBRE-BRER  UE
RESFKEGMEBMALRRRRK
ZAD o

AEESH

BEOBRNERNBERGBARALET

FE
5t 75 Rl

BT % - 201743 A29H

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, financial reporting
systems, risk management and internal control systems, and
has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

EHBENERNREBRBARAT

(Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited®)
Zhang Degang

Chairman

Jiangsu, China, 29 March 2017

For identification purposes only

90 FEHRNENERH BB AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



1817 1% NN ¥R &5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i
pwc

BESENEMNRKROGARITRE

(EFPEARKFE AR 7B RE])

BR
BEHEEHATE

[ERRDEEMBARIGATRABIES
= ) &N EISEITIANIE M HRRK -
B

o RIE—XRFE+-A=+—"HHWLHZEAE
EERBERXR:

. HEZALFENGAK®E

. REZALFENGSEEMNSE

s HEZAULFENGEEREHR:

s HEZRHLFENHFEBELRER:
54

s KAEMBHRXRME BREIESS
BRI E o

BFPMER

BMRA ZEHEMBERRERES
BRI RS EMECE BB RELER])
EEMAAEHRREEENR_-_F— R F+
A=+ BENEEFBEIRRA R EBEZ
BLEFENGEMBERAMGEARENR
B YEEBREA(ABGI)OEERE
HRRE -

BRpokiE

To the Shareholders of Wuxi Sunlit Science and
Technology Company Limited

(a joint stock company incorporated in People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wuxi Sunlit Science
and Technology Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 171, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
of trade receivables.
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Key Audit Matter
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Impairment of trade receivables

R BHmRM o) (AR HFARR
HOEMF19(B S R EMEKRFKIE]D -
Refer to Note 4(b) “Critical accounting
estimates and assumptions” and Note 19
“Trade and other receivables” to the
consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2016, the trade
receivables amounted to RMB192.0 million and
provision amounted to RMB87.3 million,
resulting in the net carrying amount of
RMB104.7 million and representing 16% of the
Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2016.

BRI T E RRAAEREERTEESRE
WK B RUE B B T R 2 ) -

We focused on this area because
management made significant judgment in
assessment of impairment
receivables.

of trade

HETTHERNEREETHERGEATE - %F
AEAEREPHNTEREL EAINLE
AT - ERTHERENRERN S EBRE -
The judgment is based on the individual credit
evaluations performed by the management.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past repayment history, current operation
status, current repayment capabilities and
current cooperation relationship.
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BB MR EERETEIE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

B EIRBEG T E 5 FEUCEIR R E 5T i 0 LA B B 2
BITTUATRER:

We obtained the assessment of impairment of trade
receivables from the management and performed the
following procedures on a sampling basis:

ENBETH LARRERFMRENEE  RARR

B 5 B 5 e WK IE BR e R 5 ) E B M
Tested the accuracy of the aging profile of trade
receivables;

BERFMNESHETHER G (WE)ETHE:
Examined the historical settlement from the customers
and compared those to repayment agreements, if any;

EEEFPNHBREERBN
Examined the subsequent settlement from the
customers;

HARABEMNETAS  UHREEERTERER
RERNPERNEREBERMNERE N ZENER
K

Performed research on public available information to
identify any inconsistency with the information
management used in the assessment of the
customers’ operation status and current repayment
capabilities; and

BERTHEHNN BT ERE LG - AT ERK
EERNAERE -

Examined the unfinished contracts and confirmed the
contract terms with customers to assess the current
cooperation relationship with them.

EBER

2T 1 2 5 B WK IR RUE B BT VR 80 HI B B R IR 1 -

Based on above procedures performed and the evidence
obtained, we considered that the judgment made by the
management in assessment of the impairment of trade
receivables is supportable.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit in this
independent auditor’s report is Pang, Ho Yin.

resulting

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(BrIERBFTIE  BRIFTEHFEHUARE T ILAIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HZEZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
B 5 20164 2015%F
Note 2016 2015
KA Revenue 5 112,284 68,168
& K AN Cost of sales 6 (79,350) (49,969)
A Gross profit 32,934 18,199
HERX Selling expenses 6 (4,332) (3,701)
THAX Administrative expenses 6 (19,850) (117,475)
H A Yz A Other income 7 1,871 3,697
Emlias — F5E Other gains — net 8 3,660 2,847
mEMNB (BB Operating profit/(loss) 14,283 (96,433)
B 75 L A Finance income 10 1,577 4,846
MBHAX Finance expense 10 - (257)
BRI A — HEE Finance income — net 1,577 4,589
BRETEBAIFIAE (B58) Profit/(loss) before income tax 15,860 (91,844)
FEHESR Income tax credit 11 12,748 3,040
FATIBEEIEERFIBE ~ Profit/(loss) for the year
(B548) attributable to shareholders
of the Company 28,608 (88,804)
FAATREERNEESIRE Earnings/(loss) per share
MOBR)AKK) attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year
(RMB)
— ERKEE — Basic and diluted 12 0.22 (0.69)

FI05RITTEN T RZEHRE VB ME The notes on pages 105 to 171 are an integral part of these
B—&BH o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(BIESBFTIE - BRIFMBEELUAARE T TIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HZEZ12A31BLERE
Year ended 31 December

20164 2015%F

2016 2015

ERFE(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 28,608 (88,804)

Hibzmmilkx Other comprehensive income - —
EATIREEEENZ2EUWZE Total comprehensive income
HOE] for the year attributable to

shareholders of the Company 28,608 (88,804)

FIRITMERN T A% S ARG M ImE The notes on pages 105 to 171 are an integral part of these
B—&5 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(BIESBFTE - BRIFMBEEEUARE T THIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
®12A831H
As at 31 December
Bt 5 20164 20154
Note 2016 2015
&aE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
o+ Mo A AE Land use rights 13 25,335 25,785
Wz BB R Property, plant and equipment 14 109,328 107,994
A Investment properties 15 20,934 19,671
BEEE Intangible assets 16 62 200
f’f S W GRT Trade receivables 19 15,922 3,470
EEFRTEHR éﬁ E — #%  Deferred income tax assets — net 20 24,175 9,655
195,756 166,775
RENEE Current assets
=8 Inventories 21 45,924 63,318
SEENRIRE ¥ Prepaid income tax - 19
AN Prepayments 23 2,252 9,084
B 5 & HAth g U 5 T Trade and other receivables 19 155,353 181,688
UWAREBEFEZER E e Financial assets at fair value
AABERNEREE through profit or loss 22 30,248 —
AR HE e Restricted cash 24 13,096 13,056
HeMREeEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 24 193,562 169,801
440,435 436,966
mEE Total assets 636,191 603,741
HEx EQUITY
&N Share capital 25 128,000 128,000
& 0 & (B Share premium 25 311,464 311,464
f# & Reserves 27 56,245 55,463
REBEF Retained earnings 26 67,367 39,541
R Total equity 563,076 534,468

1 OO FEHRNENERHBER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED




g A

=] é%ﬁ%i’% CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(BRIEBSBFTIE - BAIFTE EEHUAARB T THI/R) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

M®12H318
As at 31 December
=2 20164 20154
Note 2016 2015
BfE LIABILITIES
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 & HE M EMRIE Trade and other payables 28 48,349 48,159
TR E P IR Advances from customers 24,412 21,114
EHMEHEE Current income tax liabilities 354 —
73,115 69,273
EREBEE Non-current liabilities - —
WaE Total liabilities 73,115 69,273
BESRER Total equity and liabilities 636,191 603,741

FIRITMENNE RZEFHFEEMEImE The notes on pages 105 to 171 are an integral part of these

r—EBo o consolidated financial statements.

FIBEIT1EM AR & M B K2 20173 The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 171 were
AooBEEZEEed & WHNATALTRRE approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2017 and

e were signed on its behalf by:

EFUE EFEUE Name of Director Name of Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(BIESBFTE - BRIFMBEEEUARE T THIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B 5 kx BOEE & REEF st

Share Share Retained

Note capital premium Reserves earnings Total
720151 A1H B & 8 Balance at 1 January 2015 128,000 311,464 56,767 146,241 642,472
2= Comprehensive income
FREE Loss for the year — - — (88,804) (88,804)
2EKEEE Total comprehensive income — — = (88,804) (88,804)
HEFANXS Transaction with owners
HBREREES Transfer to safety fund 27(b) - — 1,397 (1,397) —
BEEIRKE Dividend declared — - — (19,200) (19,200)
i — B A A Deregistration of a subsidiary 27(c) — — (2,701) 2,701 —
HEFRANXSEE Total transactions with owners — - (1,304) (17,896) (19,200)
201512 A31H B &5 63 Balance at 31 December 2015 128,000 311,464 55,463 39,541 534,468
2EEA Comprehensive income
FAFE Profit for the year - - - 28,608 28,608
2EKELE Total comprehensive income - - - 28,608 28,608
HEBANRS Transaction with owners
HREELEES Transfer to safety fund 27(b) - - 782 (782) -
HEFBANRSEE Total transactions with owners - - 782 (782) -
®20165E12A31H &A% Balance at 31 December 2016 128,000 311,464 56,245 67,367 563,076

ER(EI VATl = e
B — 39 o

LUR R B

The notes on pages 105 to 171 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(BRIE=BrIE - BRIMBHEBEBUAARE T TIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
k=3 20165 20154
Note 2016 2015
KEFHHNRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
SEMSERE Cash generated from operations  30(a) 70,561 47,819
SRR PURS) Interest paid - (335)
=R Income tax paid (1,399) (1,305)
K EBFTSIRE F 5 Net cash generated from
operating activities 69,162 46,179
BETHNRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
BEYWE  MEMNMRZREKLE Purchase of property, plant and
FEEE equipment and intangible assets (18,400) (21,740)
HEWE MEKKZMEK Proceeds from disposal of
4 Hh{5F A BB P15 R IB property, plant and equipment
and land use right 30(b) 1 7,424
BERATETFAER Purchase of financial assets at fair
TRl EE value through profit or loss (494,389) —
HERAFEFAERE Proceeds from disposal of
NEertEEMSRKE financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 467,427 —
BRHIR M E Change in restricted cash (40) (2,933)
KEERSHARSFE Net cash used in investing
activities (45,401) (17,249)
BEEFHNRERE Cash flows from financing
activities
BEMEK Repayments of borrowings - (75,250)
BB Dividends paid 29 - (19,200)
XN EMHEBREZ Payments for listing-related
expenses - (6,416)
BMEEHAREFE Net cash used in financing
activities - (100,866)
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Iﬁlﬁ 7J2I:E %%‘:Z CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

g A
b7 N =1
(BRIESHEATIE - TAMEEEANUARE T TIIR)
HE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
B 52 20164 20154
Note 2016 2015
HeRFL%EEIEH Net increase/(decrease) in cash
BHM, R and cash equivalents 23,761 (71,936)
MEEEEERE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes - 2,180
FYMEERIFELZEEIEH Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 169,801 239,557
FRNMIRE RIS ZEIEH Cash and cash equivalents at
193,562 169,801

end of the year
The notes on pages 105 to 171 are an integral part of these

FI05E17T1EMM i AR E SR A P IE®ER

B — 8D o

consolidated financial statements.

104 =5 0En 5 KRHARA T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



&

wn O 7] 15 ¥ R Bl 5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIEXBAIEE -

1 AREH—BRER

BHERNEMRBROHERAR(AAAE]D)
FEKBAR (R AEE]NER RS
REBENHEMBEERN—RIIRE -

ANRQF AR2006FE3F21BEREARH
MBETPHDFMRINEREET QA -
M201267H248 - AARRIEHBIAEEE
BREHRBHABRDERRDGE c NARA
AfMBEEMI AFRIHKEESTER
L A% 37 e 2% [ 3B B R K15 o

R2014F 11 A8 » AR AR 1D R BB B
ERGFBERAT (BT ER LT -

fr= B RN
RETTTZ5 -

ZEZAMBREREA

RATEEFTE D N2017E3H298 #t & Tl
BREREUEHRE -

2 EXEBRME

BUEZEGE VW BHRRBERANIES
ABRER T - BRBAZAN  ZFR
RNFELRFEERMER -

21 EBEHE
REBMEAMBERERDRERE B A
MEBMBREEN(EBHBIRE L
ANRE - RAEVBRRERBEL K
REARE - WA AR BENEEEEH
SFABEMEeRMEEMELE -

BAPTABBENARE T ILIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of a range of
equipment for steel wire production lines.

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) as a limited liability company on 21 March
2006. The Company was converted into a joint stock company
with limited liabilities under relevant PRC laws and regulations
on 24 July 2012. The address of the Company’s registered
office is 1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic Development
Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 11 November 2014.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi thousands (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March
2017.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
convention, as modified by financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

cost
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%%éﬂji%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ EE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BIESBFTE - BRIFMBEEEUARE T THIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EBEXEFBEHEE® 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 RREEH 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

REFEEETBREELN T ®RRK The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
BAERETHREH AT ENFTEE HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
BEETEAASEN ST REREFRE It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the

o o process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
(a) ZXEEFRNBIFTRAEIEITER (a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

REBEHEMATINAEEB201651 A1 The Group had adopted the following new standards and
H 5 56 80 B B B A R 3T AT £ Rl )R (8 amendments which are effective for the Group’s financial year

K beginning on 1 January 2016:

EREMKHELED EBEEERERA HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
1458

BEEVBEHRELEL WEEEER HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
F11RHEFT 7 = Operations

ER ST ERF16% HAUBIHNFTE HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable
REBEEER N EN (Amendment) Methods of Depreciation and
F38IAVERT B Amortisation

BEEVBEmELEL KREER:-EHR HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 28 Investment entities: applying the
F105% - EBHIE & A BR B 71 (Amendment) consolidation exception

RELRF12HE HMER
BB

2858 M 1B R]
EBSTERFEI6 BE-LEN HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: bearer plants
BB GFTEL =R (Amendment)
FEMFREIER]
BER G ERFE2TH BULMBHRERD HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate
15T PN Financial Statements
ERMBEHRELELT 2012F F£2014F Amendment to HKFRS Annual Improvements
(25 BAENFE 2012-2014 cycle
pigi:d
BB ERFEIHN HEE HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative
CH

R bl # ] R S 5] 2E B R ¥ AR & The adoptions of the above new standards and amendments
WEGEMBHRRENERNERTE - have no material impact to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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(BRIE=BrIE - BRIMBHEBEBUAARE T TIIR)

2 EXEFHBEREBE®

21 RREEH

(b) HEERNZHTERRZE
RENEREVBERRETEEA T
2016118 % 5 18 /) F /5 AR A 8K
T ER REANSET AR ZE

BEEGTERE125 B
SRS aT

ERSFEAFEH ReREaR
El’\]fzﬂ
BAMGRELE
F155%
BEEVBEHELL @I A2

el

EBTERELED UBRHOHIARFZ

8l BPA&HMWKE?

257 DA KEr 22
ARV HmELN HAES
£165%

BB TSRS 2R ?%%ﬁﬁ%%
FIEEEBE RARELE
A B 5285 1Y MEEHENK
18] A4

! R2017F1 A1 A 3 2 1% 7l 4 F E B R A 2
2 R20184F1 A1H 3k 2 1% 7 46 4 JE i ] A2 5K

° R201941 A1 A 3 2 1% B3 A F [Z 23 8 A 2 ek R B
R E B M5 G E R 155

‘ ZEBRIRENR2016F1A1IHR 2 & FRNFE
HMAEX - ZFEITNERBRREMEK K
i REEARSEINEARR

AEBEREEFGEEREAZSTER RE
AETHASBENBEREINOTZE - &K
PiERHIEEARAEENKLEEEX
MEARBREATE -

BHMERRERNEMTEMBRS
HAETARBEREAEEENXE

@,
=

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new standards and amendments to standards and

interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1

January 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these

consolidated financial statements:

HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income taxes'

HKAS 7 (Amendment) Statement of cash flows!

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

HKFRS 16 Lease?®
HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 (Amendment) between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 or adopt
HKFRS 15 at the same time

4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continues to be
permitted

The Group is in the process of making an assessment on the
impact of these standards and amendments to standards on
the financial statements of the Group in the initial application.
The adoption of the above is not expected to have a material
effect on the Group’s operating results or financial position.

There are no other amendments or interpretations to HKFRS

that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.
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(BRIE=BRAIE  BRIMBHEBEBUAARE T TIIR)

2 EXEBR#BE®

22 MEBAE

2218 1#
MEAR NHASEEEFHNERE(BIEL
BUEER) BEASE2HTEMER -

LAl B m AR R N F A D AR
Bt NERHERNENZEZZTOR
- BIAREREZEGIZER - B ARIRNE
HIEEBEAEE 2 BESHFARK - KB
REEEG R IEZ ARFELESHAR -

G =

AEBRAPBESEAMEB AR ©
WENBRARANERKEARNEEME
REE FMELAGBMAETHRAER
MAFE - FERAERREIARELE
EXNEMNEEXBENATE - WE
MEAXARELARIRRAX REKAS
P PTU B R BBl B E M AEM BE
REIRAE  NFREBRRNQFER

=
E©

AEERFRWEEERIRREEA
EEIJEEA S - BRI AR
VTHFPEFBEARBREZLIDIER
BFEENNREIB AN EZERED - X
NP EHIRE A RS RIEREEA
AR FEECER T RN E - &R
FERBMBREERRTEARAEAET
EEE - DRIPHEBRESAOMAE EMEBD
HAWEBEMN A FENE -

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns

from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to

the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

(@ Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. l|dentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.
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2 EXEBR@BE®

2.2 WBATH
2218 H##E)
(@ XB&EUH#)

WHIEHEBEKRARELERS AR -

HWEBEHFOREEET  BIWEARK
W R A ST B H B B B R X IR B R A BR
HEEFRAERNBERRNATE: BH
AAEEEME AR EEERBmER -

AEEEENTARAREEREER
BAFEER SABEEXRBBENXA
REQXFEREEZY REZTESFE
AIFIORMME  ERBETHERBUNES
HitzHMBamWEHER - B RER
MEAREBISEHNTE  MERGER
e AR e

PrEd e B - WU AR (E (A SR 12 B
S 7R S R BB A B (I 1A S A A A Y MR
BHENAFEBEMBEBRAIERNEE
ERNFENDBOARIIEEE - IAAEE
RE  BHERNIFZERED REFTENSL
R ENEBRERNEEREE THBAN
BREIFEENRATE ZZE2EERKR
Bl amARTHER -

SEERS  EERARARERIZNEHRK
ARERBNCTAEKE - REREBENTT
N BREXZBEEBBTABRE
ELERME - WEAFINEARRERT
ZIEHNE - URARERAKERANBR
_ﬁo

BAPTABBENARE T ILIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@) Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

—ZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016

109



4= A

N7 =] Eﬁﬁi&%ﬁﬁ EE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIE=BRAIE  BRIMBHEBEBUAARE T TIIR)

2 EXEBR#BE®

2.2 MEBAT

2218 (&)

) HEHNERA]

ERETBE -—RMNBAREREHE
B+ PO B8 A 1T {A] OR B 4 a6 4R SK R

>m

I NBRP R - RERARIIER S
A AECENEREENRERRM
R ERVAREE - I SRR
HitzmbaAEREZERABNT
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fR - KABHEKRENEEFBAAN - B
NAIMEERAREIRE W N BRI E
N

W BN B AR RENREE  BE
BBHBARERES KM 2 E K
HAR INBLUMBRRORERE
EBABRRETNEEVBRREEE
(BREEE)REE  MAYZFREET
B ERI A,

23 SBMEBE
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EREEREFHBBRENESRS -

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any

retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at

the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying

amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial

carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting

for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or

financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are

accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

This means that certain amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income may be reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.
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(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the entities

within the Group are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the

“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are

presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s

functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income or expense’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “other gains/(losses) — net”.
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(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost

less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machineries 10 years
Vehicles 4 years
Computer and electronic equipment 3-5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Interior decoration 5 years

Except for the residual values rate of interior decoration which is
zero, the residual values rates of other property, plant and
equipment are 5%.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised

within “other gains/(loss) — net” in the consolidated income

statement.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machineries under construction and pending installation and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Historical expenditure
that is directly attributable to the construction comprises
construction costs, the cost of plant and machineries and
applicable borrowing costs incurred during the construction
period. No provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment categories and depreciated in accordance with
the policy mentioned above.

2.6 Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties that are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Investment
properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, at rates
sufficient to write off their costs over their costs over their
estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted
as appropriate at each balance sheet date. The effects of any
revision are included in the consolidated income statement
when the changes arise.

Investment property is initially measured at
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents

consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which

various plants and buildings are situated for periods varying

from 45 to 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights is

calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the land

use rights.

2.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, which are
amortised over their estimated useful lives not exceeding five
years.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for

which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more than
12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise “trade and other receivables” (Note 2.14),
“restricted cash” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (Note 2.15).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.2Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are
presented in the consolidated income statement within ‘Other
(losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

in the balance sheet when there is a

2.12 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised
lost
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised
lost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

When the terms of trade and other receivables that would
otherwise be past due or impaired have been renegotiated,
trade and other receivables are remeasured using the revised
effective interest method determined according to the
renegotiated terms and conditions. Any difference between the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables before and
after the renegotiation is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Incremental costs

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried

at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of

transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the

consolidated income statement over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-
payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred

tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the

extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax

is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However,
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

deferred tax liabilities are not

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable

temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,

except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the

reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group

and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.

(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b)
when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and
legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Warranty provision mainly represents the estimation cost of
providing maintenance services as well as the replacement of
accessories in connection with the quality warranty based on
past experience.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and value-
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliable measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical
experience, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specification of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
a range of equipment for steel wire production lines. Revenue
from sales of equipment is recognised when the risk and
reward of the goods has been transferred to the customer,
which is usually upon (1) delivery of products to the customer;
(2) completion of the installation and on-site testing (if required
in the sale contract); and (3) the acceptance by the customer of
the equipment without any further unfulfilled obligation.

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

—ZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016

125



:%TT\/\ ji%i&%%ﬁﬁ EE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIE=BRAIE  BRIMBHEBEBUAARE T TIIR)

3 HBEREER

31 HBEBER
AEENEBEUEECHAAXZRUE
J—\, iR R (BEINERR - BER

REEMERR) - ERRER KR

éfiﬂﬂﬂ N6 B ) S A e B 3R 5T 8
EXREmMmsn A EANE - XKk
Rl S S N £2 [ B 7 3R 3R A& K BN B T S R

s

= o

(a) 45 /E AR
@) SMEE B
SMERBRIRBIAFEREERFED

RPIECERNEEXAE HEABRF
FENTREELE -

AEERPREBEANEE  EAIHRHU
ARBTEREE - $EIMK% &
ENBEURREHEENRZTESE
lﬁﬁﬁﬁ%[ﬂx*%ﬁmm$%l
MR2016F 12 ABHNEERBENAEH
BERRININEEERETE -

(i) HEEwERINFEF @ R
HEEAZIKEIIEEKJE’ﬁF(fETT =23
IR & (FEBER I sZ245 ) BRIN) - BUAR
FENRARKREREREELRNTXT
BNEEFMTE  -AEERFERLE
ATRAE-

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall
risk management program of the Group focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on financial performance of the Group.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the Group’s
transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The Group’s
assets and liabilities, and transactions arising from its operations
do not expose the Group to material foreign exchange risk as
most of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2016 are denominated in the respective group companies’
functional currencies.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interests rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets (other
than bank balances and cash, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 24), the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s has no interest-bearing liabilities as
at the year-end date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and trade and other receivables.
The carrying amounts or the undiscounted nominal amounts,
where applicable, of each class of these financial
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the corresponding class of financial assets.

assets

To manage the credit risk, bank deposits and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are placed with/issued by highly
reputable financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that products are
sold to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group
assesses the creditworthiness of a customer by closely
examining a number of indicators which include its financial and
operational conditions (including whether the customer’s
production facilities are in full operation, the site of the facilities,
scale of operation, and the customer’s amount of investments in
property, plant and equipment), its credit rating and competitive
landscape of the market. Based on such assessment and the
value of the relevant contract, the Group set a maximum
balance of amount due allowable for a customer. The finance
department of the Group monitors the past due trade
receivables and directs the sales personnel to follow up the
collection of the trade receivables. The sales department of the
Group also set up a credit profile for each customer. Record
relating to the transactions with the customer is updated
monthly to monitor the amount of sales, payment, accumulated
amount outstanding, amount past due and unpaid, and
accumulated bad debts made as at the end of the month. The
finance department of the Group monitors and updates the
customer’s trade receivables position from time to time, keeps
track of the movement of the trade receivables, and ensures
that the outstanding amounts due do not exceed the maximum
balance allowable for a customer. Specific review on the
recoverability of past due trade receivables is performed on a
basis and detailed disclosure of allowance for
impairment of trade receivables is set out in Note 19. Normally
the Group does not require collateral from trade debtors.

regular
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3 HBEKREER® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31 HBERERE® 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) HEELEME (c) Liquidity risk

rEEEBRERARNR e RREESEE The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by
BHEAREBREA#ANTHEEERER maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
HES USEHEERDESEAR - & availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
REEEBREENE  NEERNRE credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
BHEFTENREE R EFEEBRER business, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
BeBEEMK- maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents.

TERBERGEEEHEZEREBAANFE The table below analyses the Group and the Company’s non-
HREIR DT AR E RARARIAIEEE A48 derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
AMAMMIETEERARE - RPBRENS based on the remaining period at the consolidated balance

BAKRKUBREAEEZRE - sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

LR1E
Less than
1 year

2016%F12H318 At 31 December 2016

B 5 & H MRS 5B (FFFE() Trade and other payables (Note (i) 46,238

st Total 46,238

2015%F12A318 At 31 December 2015

B 5 & H MR 58 (B FE() Trade and other payables (Note (i) 45,797

st Total 45,797

() TEEEMEMNTE ENESEFHREEGFE (i) Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable and provision for

B Sy B4 o quality warranty expenses.

128 EIHER N ER KM AR 2 E WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



g A

N7 =] Eﬁi%i&%‘:ilzﬁ EE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIEXBAIEE -

3 MBEKREE®

3.2 EXEHE
AEEEBEANEBEEZEERERASER
BEENEN  AARERHERR K AH
HESFAEARHNE  THESEEE
AN B8 DA BRAR & AN AN o

RTHTNHABEERNRE  AKEA AR
SAMBEROBE 2R ARREEER
BRI EEENRDER -

HEANRT—&K  AEEREEEAEL
RERER - ZHRIRFEBRIANBE
REtE - FEBREZERBERA S RKE
SEEEE  EHEFEARALIRHRITER
BITHE - BEABERREEERBRAN
TR | IFEBTE - R20165F128
318 - AEBE&EIBEK °

3.3 AF{EME
EAFEARNESRIAZRATRMNM
BEETHE ZFHEHEZNBAEB
EARBEEREFSRBT=EER:

s MHREEXABEEAEMSNRE
CREFHE)(FE ) -

e FHEEXRBHKRERIRE-—ANRN
MBEIINABEREN  THREE
(BNEHE) Sk 5 (BIABRETEF1R)
(B -

o WHERABEMHHEENTAIE
REMWNEEXRRBENE=
&) e

BAPTABBENARE T ILIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt calculated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and
restricted bank deposits. Total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debts. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group has no external borrowings.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured by
different valuation methods. The inputs to valuation methods are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy, as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried at fair value based on level 2 valuation method.
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the
year.

Other than the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, the carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) and short-term liabilities
(including trade and other payables) approximate their fair values
due to their short-term maturities

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Current and deferred income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the period in which such determination
is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

41 Critical
(Continued)

accounting estimates and assumptions

(a) Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to
be probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of income tax
assets and taxation in the periods in which such estimate is
changed.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

The management estimates the allowance for impairment of
trade receivables by assessing their recoverability individually
with reference to the past repayment history as well as
subsequent settlement status. Allowances are applied to these
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group as of
31 December 2016 and 2015 were disclosed in Note 19.

(c) Allowance for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories at each
balance sheet date to determine whether the inventories are
carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group
estimates the net realisable value of each inventory, based on its
related selling price less additional cost to sell and historical
experience on similar inventories. Any change in the
assumptions used in making the estimates would increase or
decrease the amount of allowance of inventories.
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5 WA 5 REVENUE

FTEREREE(TELERELZE®E The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) has been
ERANAMNES - TELERFERAN identified as the board of directors of the Company. The CODM
SEXBAE—LENE WKL ERN regards the Group’s business as a single operating segment
s & - and reviews the financial statements accordingly.

AEBEFERSEEREE—ZRIAR The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of

BEMANMAORE REHEEEMD a range of equipment for manufacturing steel wire products.
WA - Revenues from sales of goods are as follows:
HE12A318LLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 2015%F
2016 2015
EER Production lines
— EEERHAGEER — Brass electroplating wire
production lines 59,447 23,571
— HEhEER — Other production lines 11,363 1,856
B Standalone machineries 10,982 25,718
HmEERE T4 REH Other mould repairing equipment,
component parts and
accessories 28,439 15,590
WA Rental income 2,053 1,433
112,284 68,168
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5 ' NE D 5 REVENUE (Continued)
B E22016F M 2015F 12 A31B IEFE © 5t For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
WA BERIEE R AT geographical information on the total revenue is as follows:
HE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
A Revenue
— KR — Mainland China 87,146 54176
— Hfp — Others 25,138 13,992
112,284 68,168

g\l\blfk
4
i

REBHWKRARBUATINEER - The Group’s revenues were derived from the following external
FEZEBEMASEBRIK AI0% A £ - customers that individually contributed more than 10% of the
Group’s revenues.

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

20165 2015%F

2016 2015

~aA Company A 25,138 11,455
AFIB Company B 22,657 382
NGI@ Company C 20,067 3,562
27D Company D 864 20,611
~AJE Company E 4,316 12,410
73,042 48,420
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6 RHUEHIATHHARZ 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
HE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20164 2015%F
2016 2015
SERmEkERRNEEES Changes in inventories
of finished goods and
work in progress 10,890 10,100
R ¥ 7 A Raw materials used 55,655 31,913
& B8 M < (Mt a%9) Employee benefit expenses
(Note 9) 15,305 19,555
TEREHE Depreciation and amortisation
(M5 13~ 14 - 155216) (Notes 13, 14, 15 and 16) 9,296 7,768
GFERERE Allowance for impairment of
inventories 4,379 2,159
HEEH Professional fees 2,917 5,545
Hh %18 Other tax charges 2,358 1,621
= IR X2 Travelling expenses 1,555 2,279
INELZ B (B 5 (a) Outsourced installation fee
(Note (a)) 1,493 719
ERER Transportation expenses 1,441 717
XBRBEE Entertainment expenses 1,134 1175
% EX A BN & Auditor’s remuneration
— BETRT — Audit services 1,698 1,783
N E R Office expenses 818 940
FEUGRIB (BB R, R EEE  (Reversal of allowance)/allowance
for impairment of receivables (6,218) 84,486
B Other expenses 811 385
BEHERAE  SHEM X RITBIFX Total cost of sales, selling
expenses and
administrative expenses 103,532 171,145
B 5 - Note:
(@) IBEEBERAEFTREZELZRRBNAF (@) The outsourced installation fees were commissions paid to companies which

XK AEE -

provided professional installation services on an as-needed basis.
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7 HbA 7 OTHER INCOME
HEZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
HED(EED DR (ME@) Value-added tax (“VAT”) refunds

(Note (a)) 1,856 992
XA #78 Bh (B 3% (o) Government subsidies (Note (b)) 15 2,705
1,871 3,697

B = Notes:

@ REBEEBBREER ARFEENBARESE (@  According to the relevant tax regulations, the sales of self-developed software
BEERMBEAERAR(NEEEHF)EEaTHE products of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company # 58 &% 8 (4 &l 5 &
YHEMBEE2011F12AE2016F10AHEH BRAF (Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Haisheng Software”),
EERRE - was entitled to VAT refunds from December 2011 to October 2016.

(b) RN EFEEASERN A EA/MEREESR (b) Government subsidies mainly represented subsidies for the Group’s technical
AL o research projects and for corporate development.

8 Hiihz — F8E 8 OTHER GAINS— NET

BE12A1HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
HEAAREBEFEAH Gains on disposal of financial
2HTFTABERNEREERS assets at fair value through
profit or loss 3,038 —
RAnBEGFEALAEE Unrealised fair value gain on
AT EREERN financial assets at fair value
AREEZEFHKE through profit or loss 248 —
SNESTE 3 (B598),/ W 25 Foreign exchange (loss)/gains (3) 172
HEBRERZER I MEMRERN  Gains on disposal of plant and
W55 equipment and land used right,
net - 2,652
HAh Others 377 123
3,660 2,847
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9 REEEAMEX

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

HE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20164 2015%F
2016 2015
I8 HFekBEBREA Wages, salaries and
discretionary bonuses 10,957 14,048
Hihtt REKANEFEF R Other social security costs,
HihEE@H housing benefits and other
employee benefits 2,378 3,043
BRAREKAR — REMEREE Pension costs — defined
contribution plans 1,970 2,464
15,305 19,555

(@ HABREHAL
FRAREERLEZRHFATBIERSE (2015
FZR)EF FEMS R FIBH T
Mo R - FAEMNEH=Z(2015
FMB)ALTHESETIHT -

(@) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2015: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 34. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2015: two)
individuals during the year are as follows:

B E12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
ITE - #FekiEa Wages, salaries and bonuses 683 491
Hib{E a7 Other employee benefits 214 144
897 635
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9 EEw®IMEAXZ®
(@ HammirALE)

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

B F AT E The emoluments fell within the following bands:
HE12ABLEE
Year ended 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
B < &6 & (& T) Emolument bands (in HK$)
£ 1,000,000 7T Nil-HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
(F8 & M A R#894,5007T) to nil-RMB894,500) 3 2

10 MBWAFER

10 FINANCE INCOME — NET

B EF12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 2015%F
2016 2015
FERY: Interest expense:
— RITERK — Bank borrowings - (429)
B EBEREEEA SR Less: amounts capitalised on
qualifying assets - 172
BB X Total finance expense - (257)
2 L N Finance income:
— RITHAEHWA — Bank interest income 1,577 2,666
— [EXH W= — Exchange gain - 2,180
1,577 4,846
BMBEkA — T8 Finance income — net 1,577 4,589
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11 FiRHER 11 INCOME TAX CREDIT
HEZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
EHMEHR — PECEMRGH Current income tax — PRC

corporate income tax 1,772 1,034
IR SE BT 15 At Deferred income tax (14,520) (4,074)
FisBiEsR Income tax credit (12,748) (3,040)

BRI R B R A EHIN - AN E
BAGANEMBERRIAFR

PREEEFRER(EEMFEH)
AEBER P BN E B ERT
WABRBLEEMRER -

BEPRCEMESRETH(EERSR
SEY]) - HH2008F1 A1E#E - B ER T2
M EMERG—H25% °

BEFC(EEMERE) XAFH
BATEMSHNER25% - BIEH
(EEREBEINERER A2
BIR2013E B2016E = FAa S
R E®K - R2016F 118 + AR
T 15 R AT 20165 £ 20184F K8 4h
“FEAR S RMEE - Bt - K
ARINEE2016F12 A31B L FE K
FH15% (20154 : 15%) &Y R & 1 % B
BHE -

(@)

RATM B AR EREHR2012F B
B CEERBIBIE)E T K LE
HEENER - BRIBRBHEER -
R ERECEMSHME -
mEE=F(BRmEEENEFHE
BISREFNBORBEAEFEMELEME
EER)NBEFRR)IZH50%E A
FRERF P - B E2016F12 A31HIEEF
EWMERALEMREGH X B125%
(20154 : 12.5%) °

Except for the PRC corporate income tax described below, the
Group is not subject to income tax of other jurisdictions.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within the
Group established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”), the CIT is unified at 25% for all types of entities,
effective from 1 January 2008.

(@) The Company’s applicable CIT rate is 25% according to the
New CIT Law. Under the relevant regulations of the New
CIT Law, the Company was qualified as High/New Tech
Enterprise for three years from 2013 to 2015. In November
2016, the Company was approved to qualify as High/New
Tech Enterprise for additional three years from 2016 to
2018. Therefore, the Company applied a reduced CIT rate
of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
15%).

Haisheng Software, a subsidiary of the Company, was
qualified as a newly established software enterprise under
the New CIT Law in 2012. According to relevant tax
regulations, Haisheng Software is exempt from CIT for two
years, followed by a 50% reduction in the applicable tax
rates for the next three years, commencing either from the
first year of commercial operations or from the first year of
profitable operation after offsetting tax losses incurred in
prior years. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
applicable CIT rate is 12.5% (2015: 12.5%).
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11 FIESE%E

¢@¢¥Fﬁ *R(I'm%ﬁﬁi%ﬂj) &)
KRG U RN E IR AT S S Bk
A E R AT R R ﬁﬁﬁEFEE’J%
BMLEMER  AJHERNOT:

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

The difference between the actual income tax charge in the
consolidated income statements and the amount which would
result from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before tax
can be reconciled as follows:

HE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 2015%F
2016 2015
BrETRBiaiFImE(EEE) Profit/(loss) before
income tax 15,860 (91,844)
TR TERR25% T E MR IA Taxation calculated at the
statutory tax rate of 25% 3,965 (22,961)
NTRIEMNTE: Effects of:
ETEBREREZBEEMEN Preferential income tax enjoyed
by certain group entities (1,884) 3,413
T 2% 7 2 B9 58 ZN AR BB 1R Extra deduction allowance for
research and development
expenses (250) 410)
WEBERELEMSHEERN Tax losses for which no deferred
HIEEE income tax asset was
recognised 58 607
WEERELEMSHEERN Temporary differences for
TRMEER which no deferred income tax
asset was recognised 817 16,163
BRERNRKEERHNELEMEHE Recognition of temporary
B Z A EREER differences for which no
deferred income tax asset was
recognised previously (15,693) —
N BE BT A5 A0 R B9 B 2 Expenses not deducted for
income tax purposes 239 148
FifgfHii R Income tax credit (12,748) (3,040)
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12 BRER 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

BRERBNNFAETEABEARTRR The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

J& (5 R BR LASE AN A 5] 3 3 AR B9 hn 8 1 attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the

HE o weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company
during the year.

B E12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
AN R AR R EM R, (B 1E) Profit/(loss) attributable to
shareholders of the Company 28,608 (88,804)
BETEBRAMEFHEK Weighted average number of
(FR) ordinary shares in issue
(thousand) 128,000 128,000
BREAREERF(EB) Basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
(ANE¥) per share (RMB) 0.22 (0.69)

R AR A P20164F & 2015512 A31H I As the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
BEMBEZRTENBEIEER  WE shares outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, diluted
REERNENSRELRAT - earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share.
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13 T {E R # 13 LAND USE RIGHTS
HE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December

20165 20154
2016 2015
REWM At the beginning of year 25,785 34,251
HE Disposal - (3,410)
EEEEME Transfer to investment property - (4,324)
o Amortisation (450) (732)
NEX At the end of year 25,335 25,785

REERTHMIFERAENERELEHE The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepayment

AR RIE - AKRERAE T HFERAEAVR for operating leases. All the land use rights of the Group are

REIRHE - 3R IR A A RF B45E 504 © located in Mainland China and are held on leases for 45 to 50
years.

REE T AENEHEDSTATERRX Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights were included in the
FEEKA - €555 A A RIE330,000 administrative expenses and cost of sales in the amount of
7T & A R #120,0007T (20154 : A R #& RMB330,000 and RMB120,000, respectively (2015: RMB732,000
732,000t K F) ° and ni).
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93,960 4,574 X 4,914 107,994

- - ; 9,752 11,306
13,945 594 - (14,645) -
(2,498) - - - - (2,498)

(5,085) (654) (1,095) (451) (99) (89)

100,322 4,514 1,896 474 1,014 21

110,477 7,609 6,587 4,741 1,449 1,256 21 132,140
(10,155) (3,095) (4,691) (3,654) (975) (242)

100,322 4,514 1,896 1,087
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14 YME BERRHE® 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
TEEBRDGAAGERAERNATER Depreciation charges were included in the following categories
in the consolidated income statement:

HZEZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
8 € B A Cost of sales 1,477 138
THRAX Administrative expenses 5,697 5,551
HERXZ Selling expenses 299 282
7,473 5,971
15 E&EME 15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
B E12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2016 20154
2016 2015
R & At cost
1 A1B B9 4 &k Opening balance at 1 January 19,671 —
EREXTERAYE Transfer from owner-occupied
property 2,498 20,589
WEREEER Depreciation and amortisation
charge (1,235) (918)
R12A31B B R &6k Closing balance at
31 December 20,934 19,671
128318 At 31 December
(DN Cost 30,349 26,115
2t E R Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation (9,415) (6,444)
MREFE Net book amount 20,934 19,671
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15 HEVE®
AEBURFBENIKRENERBLEHE
AEEREEMIGAZBRESTMES
FTBEHETER RETKREDELTF
B HEMFEARR(REMEZRING
MERMS LN RMERIRFER
SRS WA RS RMEF - ARBERIRT
mh - BAMEER  RKREERERKA
BIRARBERESWANRRE - LKTAT
BYENHEDERNBARARATEE

iy

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties, which are located in the
PRC, are revalued by an independent professional qualified
valuer, Jiangsu Gongzheng Tianye Certified Public Accountants,
on an annual basis. In determining the fair value of the
investment properties, the valuer uses assumptions and
estimates that reflect, amongst other factors, comparable
market transactions in an active market, lease income from
current leases and assumptions about lease income from future
leases in light of current market conditions, capitalisation rates,
terminal yield and reversionary income potential. Valuations were
based on income and an open market value approach for all
properties as follows:

$12H31H
As at 31 December
20165 2015%F
2016 2015
KEMENRFE Fair value of the investment
properties 33,813 28,900

REEHNEDTEE  DENRER &
HRBAEREAR - AEERENEY
AT EEESRATEH BETHE -

UTBHEENREMEFE R ERTER

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. The fair value of
the Group’s investment properties was measured on Level 3 fair
value measurement.

The following amounts have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for investment properties:

HE12ABLEE
Year ended 31 December

20165 20154

2016 2015

HeA Rental income 2,053 1,433
EfHSWBANEEREEERT Direct operating expenses that

generate rental income (1,235) (918)

818 515
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16 B|EEE 16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2 Bl 4
Computer
software
B £2015F12A31B 1L F & Year ended 31 December 2015
FUEREFEE Opening net book amount 347
HIHE MR Amortisation charge (147)
FRIREFEE Closing net book amount 200
? 2015512 A31H At 31 December 2015
(DN Cost 732
g £ Accumulated amortisation (532)
REFE Net book amount 200
#H E20165F12A31B L FE Year ended 31 December 2016
FYREFE Opening net book amount 200
HIHE R Amortisation charge (138)
FRIE@FHE Closing net book amount 62
" 2016%F12A31H At 31 December 2016
AN Cost 732
Eg 3] Accumulated amortisation (670)
R FE Net book amount 62

BEEENEHECRNGRERERPHIT Amortisation of the intangible assets has been charged to
Bk - administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.

—Z=—NFERE ANNUALREPORT 2016 145



%%éﬂji%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ EE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BIESBFTE - BRIFMBEEEUARE T THIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17 SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

17 B AT
TX AB20165F12A31IB T EME AR &

oo

December 2016:

ERTR
F T AY 3L 3 B % B/ ®12A31BHFEH
ATER ENER = M & & BERER TEEBREEBE
Issued and
paid up/
Place of incorporation registered Effective interest
and kind of legal capital held as of Principal activities and place
Name of company entity (thousand) 31 December of operations
20164 20154
2016 2015
TEHENERBENEERAR R AREME AR ¥%5,0007T 100% 100% EREETEMERES
A7
Jiangsu Sunlit Equipment Technology The PRC, Limited liability RMB5,000 100% 100% Machinery products trading in the
Company Limited company PRC
SR P BREMEAR A R ¥1,0807T 100% 100% FERBETHRMRE RSN E A
EES
Haisheng Software The PRC, Limited liability RMB1,080 100% 100% Software development and
company software patent rights trading
in the PRC
P FERBERRARAR(FEa) HE - BREEAA AR# ERA 100% HEREETEBERRERES
80,0007T
Wuxi Shangda Automation Technology The PRC, Limited liability RMB80,000 N/A 100% Machinery products manufacture

Company Limited (“Wuxi Shangda”)
(Note a)

B 2 -

company

Note:

and trading in the PRC

@) EHLEREMEEERAGBEBBEEARARKR (a)
F NI R o

Wuxi Shangda was deregistered during the year after all its assets and liabilities
had been transferred to the Company.
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ERRE RAFHEA
FEWRIE HEEMNEE
Assets at

fair value

Loans and through the
receivables profit & loss

171,275 171,275

- ) 30,248
193,562 193,562
13,096 13,096

377,933 ) 408,181

RBER AR
) & 5 & 5
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
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18 REHNEIP»BHE T R ) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
1=} /T)\ 53 JE H& /TA
Loans and
receivables
#2015%F12A31H At 31 December 2015
JINGEEEEBBRRNEE Assets as per consolidated balance
sheet
B 5 & B A e WK IR Trade and other receivables 185,158
RekReEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 169,801
AR HEE Restricted cash 13,056
st Total 368,015
BB A2
Mt afE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

NREEERERNAE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
B 5 & H At e~ 5038 (M 3E () Trade and other payables (Note (a)) 45,797
Bt & - Note:
(@) TEREHMEMNHRE  ENEERIIEBEERE (a) Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable and provision for
P B - quality warranty expenses.
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194,441
(2,463)

191,978
65,673
378
718

258,747

(87,260)

(212)

(87,472)

171,275

15,922
155,353

171,275
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19 BESRHEMBERKRRIES 19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

B = Notes:

(@) BRHREFREBMNBL ERRBMEARERNE (@) Apart from a portion of the contract sum retained by customers to cover the

MEEREFII  AEEBVEEHEARANRE
FETEEH - R20165F12A310 + B 5 E UK
EHEEZERBHRIELHARK66,112,0007T (2015
&F: AR %71,290,0007T) - 6 & 5 WK IEL
34.0% (20154 : 29.3%) - REBEERFH (—
BERFBRUGEEET121E A) Eim& 2 #UER

Group’s product quality warranty, the Group does not grant credit terms to
customers in the sales contracts. Included in trade receivables as at 31
December 2016 are such retained sums of approximately RMB66,112,000
(2015: RMB71,290,000) representing 34.0% (2015: 29.3%) of trade receivables.
These are due for collection upon the expiry of product quality warranty
period (which is usually 12 months from the acceptance by the customers of
the equipment).

) FEERKEBRBERITEALEBRBREERR ()  Notes receivable of the Group include bank acceptance notes and commercial
EZE B BRAREAHEF A NERRNEE - acceptance notes, and are usually settled within six months from the date of

issue.
(©) IE 7 B FE UL R TE A B 5 FE W R TE B 4 R B BT M (©) The non-current receivables are the trade receivables due within two years from

FREH -

RELEZREFENERDAREE

the end of the year.

Aging analysis based on recognition date of the gross trade

HAMERER2THET : receivables at the respective balance sheet dates is as follows:

$12H31H

As at 31 December

20165 20154
2016 2015
15K Up to 1 year 42,853 24,812
1226 1-2 years 8,369 119,936
2Z=Q = 2-3 years 80,496 54177
B IBIF Over 3 years 62,723 44,424
194,441 243,349
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19 BEREMEWRIE @ 19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
UTEBBERKRENESERKIET The following trade receivables were past due but not impaired
W IV EEREENELRER,E related to a number of independent customers with no recent

o ZEESERRERNRRSNOT history of default. The aging analysis of these trade receivables
is as follows:
®12H31H
As at 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
BEIE AR Past due within 1 year 29,311 24,146
BHNFEE2F Past due for 1 to 2 years 5,787 48,359
B HAD G FE34F Past due for 2 to 3 years 7,253 868
B HISE A Past due over 3 years 225 38
42,576 73,411
E2HAHDBENE SR GKIBLRT Trade receivables wholly or partially impaired are as follows:
$12A31H
As at 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
2 5 W IE Trade receivables 94,085 119,268
B Allowance for impairment (87,260) (106,665)
5 e W SR IE F R Trade receivables — net 6,825 12,603
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19 BESRHAMEBKRIE®
% E BB E R E 5 B U IR A BR ik 0 1 40

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The aging analysis of these impaired trade receivables is as

Ik follows:
»12A31H
As at 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
1F R Up to 1 year 4,482 15,452
1524 1-2 years 5,825 44,672
PIEGEE 2-3 years 27,396 31,727
B EIF Over 3 years 56,382 27,417
94,085 119,268

AEBES N EMBUKRENREEAT

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

5| & EE = (E receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
®12A831H

As at 31 December
20165 20154F
2016 2015
AR RMB 257,032 290,431
ETT US dollar 1,715 1,604
258,747 292,035
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19 B Rt EKRIEA:

f’f%&ﬁf’@ﬁH&ZTAIEE!’JHTE%{%“@MH
T

,m\ﬁ»

- BRIFFA BB AARE T TIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements of allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables are as follows:

HE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 2015%F
2016 2015
R1A1BBAMEREE Opening balance at 1 January 106,877 23,324
HINBERE Additional allowance for
impairment 8,727 97,956
BB B Reversal of allowance for
impairment (14,945) (13,470)
AN AT Y [B] &9 FE U 3K T8 i 35 Receivables written off as
uncollectible (13,187) (933)
MR12A31BEAKREREE Closing balance at
31 December 87,472 106,877
Vﬂﬁl HRERENRYRBEREFA The creation and release of allowance for impaired receivables
e SR EWRIE(BERRE) RE have been included in “(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for
ﬁéﬁJ A (FT5E6) AT ABEERMKIE— impairment of receivables” in the consolidated income statement

FE 78 531 e 70 W [0 B8 13RS B TORK

B 5N EWERME M B RIRE XA
BECHEEE
f’f%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ& XIH H) D
BERE

A EEEBRE

R*ﬁﬁlJfH& IEE’JEEETE 1&%@1
BRAEEMERDIERER -

(Note 6). Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their
carrying amounts.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amounts of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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20 REFIBHEETFE 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET
BEMEMEESTRAT: The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:
®12A831H
As at 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
RIEFTEREE : Deferred income tax assets:
— BB E12(E AUk E — to be recovered after
more than 12 months 20,554 7,955
— #R121E A R 4 [l — to be recovered
within 12 months 3,658 1,700
24,212 9,655
BEEFMESHRAR: Deferred income tax liabilities:
— B2 AR K E — to be recovered
within 12 months (37) —
RIEFMEREEFE Deferred income tax assets
— net 24,175 9,655
RIEFMSPREEFEEHOT The movements on the deferred income tax assets — net are
as follows:
WEBH  KBRAE  ATEKE BIERG A Hit @it
Allowance
for Unrealised Fair value Tax
impairment profit gains losses Others Total
®2015F1A18 At 1 January 2015 3,890 900 — 620 171 5,581
FASGNE) kaEE Credited/(charged) to the
income statement 2,451 (775) — 2,287 111 4,074
®20155%E12H31H At 31 December 2015 6,341 125 — 2,907 282 9,655
FTA/GNE) K x Credited/(charged) to the
income statement 11,769 213 (87) 2,175 400 14,520
#2016 12H31H At 31 December 2016 18,110 338 (37) 5,082 682 24,175
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20 BEFEHEEFE®

il

WENREARKERKEF BEERAA
MIEMzZ AR EEEEERRET
FT 18 T & E - M2016%128318 * K &
B P 4 Bt 0] 45 B AR SH R PR IR SR B U A
/) B IE &5 18 4 A R #2,781,0007T (2015
& A R#5867,0007T) #E R IE L FT 57
& E 4 A R 6950007 (2015F : A R
#4,467,0007T) ° 120165F12A31H © X
TR B 1B 5 B A R #1,035,000T * AR
#1,515,0007T * A R #231,0007T % 5l %
20194 + 20204 K 20214 FI| & -

R2016F12 A31H » AN B o] & 8514
=824 A\ R #135,996,0007T (20154 : A
R #£129,333,0007T) ° Btz 5 Al N E b5
4= 24 A R #127,879,0007T (20154 :
AR®47120,0007T) ERELERIBEE ©
AP AR 4 5 FE SR B K1) B AT A DA K 88 AT B0 AR
WAEINERMEER - WA TR E
ME R ZE 2 ARKS117,0007T (2015
% :82,213,000) ERELEMEMEE ©

BAPTABBENARE T ILIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2016, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB695,000 (2015: RMB1,467,000) for tax
losses of approximately RMB2,781,000 (2015: RMB5,867,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income. As
at 31 December 2016, the unrecognized tax losses amounting
to RMB1,035,000, RMB1,515,000 and RMB231,000 will expire in
2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB135,996,000 (2015:
RMB129,333,000). A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of approximately RMB127,879,000 (2015: RMB47,120,000)
of such deductible temporary differences. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB8,117,000 (2015:
RMB82,213,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be utilised.
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21 B& 21 INVENTORIES
®12H31H
As at 31 December
20164E 20154
2016 2015
R Raw materials 13,721 18,843
£ &= M Work in progress 29,535 33,008
84 BX i Finished goods 2,668 11,467
45,924 63,318

HZE2016F12A31HILFE  BRARX
REATHEXN RN TFEX AL RARKE
70,924,0007T (20154 : A R 44,172,000
L) BEFERREGFTEREBEARK
4,379,0007T (20154F : A R #2,159,000
JT) e

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted
to approximately RMB70,924,000 (2015: RMB44,172,000),
which included the allowance for impairment of inventories of
RMB4,379,000 (2015: RMB2,159,000).
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22 FAFEFANEEHNENEE

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

»12A31H
As at 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
Y EEREESR Wealth management products 30,248 —

MEEEERHTRERESCRBBEE
B RETFRRITETNEREE  AF
R EENERREE -

BAFEFAEGSNEREENAFE
EPEGRERaRTH[EMaks — F
88 RC 8k (MF5E8) -

23 FHfRIA

The wealth management products were managed by licensed
financial institutions in the PRC to invest in the financial assets
issued by the Chinese banks with higher credit rate and
liquidity.

The wealth management products were guaranteed of the return
of principal and redeemable before maturity date.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in ‘other gains — net’ in the

consolidated income statement (Note 8).

23 PREPAYMENTS

$12H31H
As at 31 December
20165 2015%F
2016 2015
TR E T & A F I8 Prepayments for value added
tax and other taxes 1,686 8,229
EERME R TR KIE Prepayments for purchase of
raw materials 566 628
H At Others - 227
2,252 9,084
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24 HERBFE£%EEIER 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
RITREFRE Cash at bank and on hand 148,660 46,069
HERITER Short-term bank deposits 57,998 136,788
206,658 182,857
B A R HI3R & (5% (a)) Less: Restricted cash (Note (a)) (13,096) (13,056)
HeMREeEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 193,562 169,801
B 5 - Note:
(@) DARBHENERGRSEER TRITER (@  The restricted cash which is denominated in RMB represented cash deposits
ERERRFLOHBESFER (M F28) RLOHE pledged to banks as security for notes payable (Note 28) and letter of
ERE - guarantee for export sales.

AEBNRS KA SEEEE RERHIE The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are

SUATIER.ESE: denominated in the following currencies:
M12A31H
As at 31 December

2016 20154
2016 2015
AR RMB 206,604 181,640
BT HK$ 9 11
=TT US$ 45 1,206
206,658 182,857
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25 IRAERKRGimE

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise

stated)

25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

TiE R
% 2 REx RriaE gt

Number of

issued Share Share

shares capital premium Total

(B%)

(shares)
20152016412 B31H At 31 December 2016 and 2015 128,000,000 128,000 311,464 439,464

26 REZRF 26 RETAINED EARNINGS

R2015FE1H1H At 1 January 2015 146,241
FAEE Loss for the year (88,804)
EREL2E e (K E27(0) Transfer to safety fund (Note 27(b)) (1,397)
EEIRKH Dividend declared (19,200)
8 — Y B AR (M 5E27(c) Deregistration of a subsidiary (Note 27(c)) 2,701
®2015%12H31H At 31 December 2015 39,541
201651818 At 1 January 2016 39,541
F XA B Profit for the year 28,608
e 222 e (M E270) Transfer to safety fund (Note 27(b)) (782)
2016E12A31H At 31 December 2016 67,367

—ZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016

159



4= A

Eﬁﬁ%i&?\%ﬁﬁ EE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b7 N =1
(BIESBFTE - BRIFMBEEEUARE T THIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
27 f#fE 27 RESERVES
BEAE ZEEHE S E st
Capital Statutory Special
reserves reserves reserve Total
(Fff 3% (@) (B 7% (o))
(Note (a) (Note (b))
®2015FE1H1H At 1 January 2015 17,637 32,156 6,974 56,767
BEBRETEES Transfer to safety fund = = 1,397 1,397
ST EH— MM B AR (M 5E(c)) Deregistration of a
subsidiary (Note (c)) — (500 (2,201) (2,701)
®2015%12H31H At 31 December 2015 17,637 31,656 6,170 55,463
"2016E1H1H At 1 January 2016 17,637 31,656 6,170 55,463
EBRETEHES Transfer to safety fund - - 782 782
2016128 31H At 31 December 2016 17,637 31,656 6,952 56,245
B = Notes:
(a) BB AR ARNIAR AR E B 7&K (a) In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and the Articles

Brr((TEEEER]MWAMERMA - HE
EEERVAREHENEFBRENFEL
A (o B & 52 R B 5E) B 2 10% R 2K £ {7
MMNAEBREEZFERBDES - MEERHBA
BeHEHREINZSTHELEEREMEARN
50% * RIFT R BB R E(EIE — SR B -
AEBEBRLESUTANBHEEFEEWE) I
AEAEAEMER  ERBRETROEER
BRARSBHRTE LR EMEA#25%

BEERZ2EEEE TR A RR2012FH M
METZER  BOKEERBARBRAN—EL
PIERZ2ES EEESUANKEHME
ExrEx  BTAAERRRIIK - REERER
iR BEREASEBREEFRERERN -

REZE2015F 12 A31H IEFEHRE - B ART
BE=MTEGRARBEEM - 808 ERER -

(o)

(©

of Association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC
Operational Entities”), the PRC Operational Entities are required to appropriate
10% of their annual net profit, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as
determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the statutory surplus
reserve fund before distributing any net profit. When the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC Operational Entities, any further transfer is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to offset prior
years’ losses, if any, and may be capitalised as registered capital, provided
that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State of Administration of Work
Safety in 2012, certain group entities are required to set aside an amount to a
safety fund at certain percentage of revenue. The fund can be used for
improvement of safety for machinery manufacturing, and are not available for
distribution to shareholders. Upon incurring safety expenditure, an equivalent
amount is transferred from safety fund to retained earnings.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a subsidiary, Jiangyin Sanzhi
Gongkong Machinery Co., Ltd. was deregistered, related reserves were
released.
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28 BESRHMEMSRIE 28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
FERT R & (M7 (@) Notes payable (Note (a)) 23,008 18,653
B 5 FE {5 5018 (M 5% (b)) Trade payables (Note (b)) 12,953 11,038
HERNERS Quality warranty deposits from
suppliers 3,260 3,940
ME - WEKRBENENKIE Payables for property, plant and
equipment 2,937 10,030
JER 1R B4R A Employee benefits payable 1,618 1,905
Hh fE < B 18 Other taxes payable 336 357
BERAZBE Provision for quality warranty
expenses 157 100
HAh Others 4,080 2,136
48,349 48,159
B = Notes:
(@) A EEAMRITE IR IR SFRIEER o (@)  The notes payable are secured by pledge of cash deposits to banks.

() EBIENFREEREZAHOKRESTMOT: (b)  The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2016 20154
2016 2015
1 A Up to 1 year 11,655 9,001
15824 1-2 years 440 661
2&E3F 2-3 years 242 —
3FLAE Over 3 years 616 1,376
12,953 11,038
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(BRIE=BRAIE  BRIMBHEBEBUAARE T TIIR)

29 B2

20164 I £ K 1~ i% B » 20154 K 15 B9 A%
B A A RK19,200,0007T (B A E#0.15
JL) °

AAREFGEZ KB E20165F12 431
HIEFERESRARKO0OST - &K
B A K #6,400,0007T @ 78 R2017F6 49
HREOZBRRAFAKSEREMEELS
A{EE - 25V BWMERILERE L ER
i% B (20154 : £&) o

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid in 2016. The dividend paid in 2015 was
RMB19,200,000 (RMBO0.15 per share).

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of
RMBO0.05 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
RMB6,400,000, has been proposed by the board of directors of
the Company and is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the annual general meeting to be held on 9 June 2017.
These financial statements have not reflected this dividend
payable (2015: Nil).

$12H31H
As at 31 December
20165 2015%F
2016 2015
BEAHRESREAR Proposed final dividend of
A R #¥0.057T (20154 : 4&) RMBO0.05 (2015: Nil)
per ordinary share 6,400 —
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(BrIERHFTIE  BRIFTEHFEHAAREFILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 EEMBRZ
@ BRPTE RN A R &

30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
KETIS I & /Y (a) Reconciliations of profit before income tax to cash

HERMT generated from operations were as follow:
HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
BRBiAI A (E5HE) Profit/(loss) before income
tax 15,860 (91,844)
AT ZIEIERE: Adjustments for:
— W& (M FE14 5 Fft 7E15) — Depreciation
(Notes 14 and 15) 8,708 6,889
— B8 (M 18 & Bt aE16) — Amortisation
(Notes 13 and 16) 588 879

— BZRWHRERE(EERR), - (Reversal of allowance)/

B (4 5E19)
— HERERE

— LEME  BEMR
T o PR A U 25

— HERQFEFAAER

allowance for impairment

of receivables (Note 19) (6,218) 84,486
— Allowance for impairment
of inventories 4,379 2,159
R A K — Gains on sale of property,
(M 5E8) plant and equipment and
land used rights (Note 8) - (2,552)

SHE&REE — Gains on disposal of

Fr 15 4 2= (Bt 558) financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss (Note 8) (3,038) —
— ?;?QS?TEEJr)\T%ﬁTéE’U@EﬂﬁEZ — Unrealised fair value gain

RERATER

on financial assets
at fair value through

profit or loss (248) —
— BB AX (M FE10) — Finance expenses (Note 10) - 257
—EXER — Foreign exchange difference - (2,180)
EESSRHANEENH Operating profit before
changes in working
capital 20,031 (1,906)
BESED Changes in working capital
- &8 — Inventories 13,015 13,216
- ?Eﬁ — Prepayments 6,832 2,943
%&Eﬁﬁréqﬂl — Trade and other receivables 20,101 61,521
— f’f%&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁw — Trade and other payables 7,284 (6,952)
— AR EPKIE — Advances from customers 3,298 (21,008)
KERBHEE Cash generated from

operations 70,561 47,819
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30 FEFRBHRE® 30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Continued)
(b) REEHERERT  HEWE - K (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
B RXERLHFEREMSHER sale of property, plant and equipment and land use right
& comprise:
B E12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20154
2016 2015
ME - BENMZENREFEE Net book amount of the
(M 3E14) property, plant and
equipment (Note 14) 1 1,462
b 55 PR 4 A9 BR DT B (Y 5513) Net book amount of the land
use rights (Note 13) - 3,410
HEME  BERZBEAR Gains on sale of property,
o {5 AR A A9 Uk 2= (BT RE8) plant and equipment and
land use rights (Note 8) - 2,552
1 7,424
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31 J&:E

(a) EXEK:E
BRTHEHMARGAMBHRRIEREN
BARZBAT:

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

31 COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted and not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

®12A31H
As at 31 December
2016 20154
2016 2015
Y BEREE Property, plant and equipment 216 3,172
(b) ZBEHEREIKEE — FELEE (b) Operating leases rental receivables — group

BHEA
RETAIRFELERERENRERKE
HERMROT:

company as lessor

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

$12A31H
As at 31 December
20164 20154
2016 2015
TEBE—F No later than 1 year 2,298 1,720
—FERF Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years 2,213 2,007
4,511 3,727
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32 FABARXS
REEBFREMLELE - RERLAE RREF
EL T H&ES - HR20165F12 A31H 3%
RIEZEFAEARRRKR#ERNG0.34% °

H E22016F M2015F 12 A3IBILFE @ &
BARSGAAEB E @ 2 BT -

(@ EEEHEWHE
TEERERREES EFERaREEA
8 o HE2016%F K 20156F12 A31B IEFE
WEZEREMEIHINOT:

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr.
Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua, who collectively held
60.34% direct equity interest in the Company as at 31
December 2016.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
significant transaction has been carried out between the Group
and related parties.

(a) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors, supervisors and senior
managements. The key management compensation for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are set out as
below:

HE12A318LLEE
Year ended 31 December
20164 2015%F
2016 2015
FEEBER/E Key management
compensation

— I&  HFekitsd —Wages, salaries and
bonuses 2,426 2,525
— BikEES —Welfare and pension 528 438
2,954 2,963
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33 KXACIEEEREREHEEEE 33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

AATIEEEBRER Balance sheet of the Company
®12A831H
As at 31 December
Bt 2 20164 20154
Note 2016 2015
BEE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
£ b A Land use rights 30,436 456
ME - BERRME Property, plant and equipment 94,733 92,397
REWME Investment properties 20,934 19,671
BEEE \ Intangible assets 62 200
REBRRAIRE Investments in subsidiaries 24,719 217,936
B 5 K A & Y R B Trade and other receivables 15,922 3,470
BEEFMEREE Deferred income tax assets 11,266 4,236
198,072 338,366
HENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 48,143 64,031
TE 5K IE Prepayments 2,274 8,517
B 5 K H At FE YRR Trade and other receivables 161,773 190,505
BAFEFAEZH Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 30,248 —
BRHIR 2 Restricted cash 10,096 8,845
ReEkREEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 169,712 160,194
422,246 432,092
HEE Total assets 620,318 770,458
Ex EQUITY
(&N Share capital 128,000 128,000
R A7 i { Share premium ~ 311,464 311,464
(Fkes Reserves (o2
Note (a)) 73,633 72,851
RBAF Retained earnings (Bft 3%
Note (a)) 39,866 42,067
R Total equity 552,963 554,382
B LIABILITIES
mENBa & Current liabilities
B 5 & B th FE 1~ 5B Trade and other payables 42,943 199,132
BUE P RIE Advances from customers 24,412 16,944
67,355 216,076
ERBEE Non-current liabilities — —
i Total liabilities 67,355 216,076
HESRERE Total equity and liabilities 620,318 770,458

ARRBEEREBERD R201743A200 &
EEgH A WHUTALTREREE:

EFHE

EFHE

by:

Name of Director

Name of Director

—ZE - XEE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 2016

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 29 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf
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33 AAEIBEERRRHEHEED

(%)

Mie(a) : A ABHIREES

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a): Reserve movement of the Company

BERAE EEME 45 Bl & 14 fEfEEE REEA

Capital Statutory Special Total Retained

reserves reserves reserve reserve earnings

”2015%F1A1H At 1 January 2015 37,956 28,616 4,773 71,345 90,169

FREE Loss for the year — — — — (27,505)

ERELTE2ES Transfer to safety fund — — 1,397 1,397 (1,397)

EEIKER S Dividend declared — — - — (19,200)
T —HENEB AT Deregister of a

subsidiary 109 — — 109 —

%2015%F12A31H At 31 December 2015 38,065 28,616 6,170 72,851 42,067

»20165FE1H18 At 1 January 2016 38,065 28,616 6,170 72,851 42,067

FANEE Loss for the year - - - - (1,419)

BRELEES Transfer to safety fund - - 782 782 (782)

”2016%FE12H31H At 31 December 2016 38,065 28,616 6,952 73,633 39,866
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BHRERFE
- REH#HX BHR
B 5 AL =t 8l BEMEHN

Pension costs
— defined Allowances
Discretionary contribution and benefits
Salaries bonus plans in kind
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34 ESRESEARER®

(@) EEREENME®
REEREEHE20156F12A31A ILEE
MBS T

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

e

Discretionary

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year

BAEE KA
— REHK R R
=t &l EWEF #5t

Pension costs

— defined Allowances
contribution  and benefits

e Name Fees Salaries bonus plans in kind Total
BITES Executive Directors
1= Zhang Degang - 460 38 37 36 571
o 122 58 (BT 7 (i) Zhang Degiang (Note (i) — 450 37 37 36 560
*HTES Non-executive Directors
= & Gao Feng — = = — — _
RERE Zhang Jinghua - 187 — = — 187
BIAFRTEE Independent Non-

executive Directors
ElLige Liu Chaojian 100 - — = - 100
il & B3 Ho Yuk Ming Hugo 100 - = = — 100
=T Gao Fu Ping 100 — = = — 100
ES Supervisors
1HERE Yang Jinghua - 107 1 23 23 164
e Wei Yi = = — — _ _
N Peng Jiashan = - — _ _ _
Y 5 Note:

(i) AARBRHITBRABRERTREEAL -

REZE2016F12A31BILLFE HEZES
WRASEMSIEAMARER R AR
RN RS ABBEE - IEEENE
3 [B] B UE £ A B & (20154F : &) -

(i) The chief executive of the Company is Mr. Zhang Degiang, who is a director.

During the year ended 31

December 2016,

no directors

received emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
No directors waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments

(2015: Nil).
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(BRIEXBAIEE -

34 EEREEEMRER®

(b) EERKEZERN
B4 & E R F A B URER K WERE (Al 3R K
BA (20154 : &) o

(c) EEMLXILEER
WEEERFERND WER S B BT (] 3R &
1EfE FI (20154 : 4&) o

(d MREREEZFRFMESE=FREH
K1E
REE20165F12 A31B L EEHRE - K&
B ERTRAE= A ZHREEEIRG
MEECZE—RF &) -

() MES  RLFEFERNENE
EBRZEFHAEIRRENE
R EERUAMXZIHER

RE Z2016F12 8318 ILFEHIR - &
EHNES  HEFEHEZEREES
FRENERBAXEANER  EEX
REMRGLH(ZE—RF &)

( EBEERXS RHEISHBHEXE

3
RERKFEREMER - REFELAF
ERITNTARRAEETRNETRAERX
R (TmEEKER) NEARRERE
FHNEARRS RGN (ZT—02%F:
&)

BAPTABBENARE T ILIIR)

(Alllamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not

pay consideration to any third parties for making available

directors’ services (2015: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there are no loans,

quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the

directors, or controlled body corporates and connected entities
of such directors (2015: Nil).

interests

(f) Directors’ material

arrangements or contracts

in transactions,

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2015: Nil).
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B ZEZ12AHLEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20154 20144 20134 20124
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARETR ARETRE ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 112,284 68,168 314,298 318,948 323,597
wEFE S (E18) Operating Profit/(loss) 14,283 (96,433) 141,862 153,347 149,685
FTigsi(Ee),  MxX Income tax (credit)/expense (12,748) (3,040) 28,438 22,469 25,257
FRFE(EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 28,608 (88,804) 111,602 130,992 125,269
R ARD R %R EAE Earnings/(loss) per share
ﬁfﬁ&ﬁi{éfgf;” =) attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per
share)

—EXKREE — Basic and diluted 0.22 (0.69) 1.11 1.36 1.80
E R Gross profit margin 29.33% 26.70% 48.60% 58.26% 59.75%
wEFIE(Bi8) X Operating profit/(loss) margin 12.72% —141.46% 45.14% 48.08% 46.26%
wH L CFEE) X Net profit/(loss) margin 25.48% -130.27% 35.51% 41.07% 38.71%

®12A31H
As at 31 December

20164 2015%F 20144 20134 20124

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

ARETRE AREBTRE ARETRT ARETT ARETR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FEMBE E Non-current assets 195,576 166,775 171,734 138,552 104,638

mB A E Current assets 440,435 436,966 646,986 631,254 577,289

mEAE Current liabilities 73,115 69,273 176,248 271,822 314,934

mEEEFE Net current assets 367,320 367,693 470,738 359,432 262,354
BEERTEDEE Total assets less current

liabilities 563,076 534,468 642,472 497,984 366,992

BEFE Net assets 563,076 534,468 642,472 497,984 366,992

[N Capital 128,000 128,000 128,000 96,000 96,000

& Reserves 56,245 55,463 56,767 40,902 28,585

B Total equity 563,076 534,468 642,472 497,984 366,992
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